
 
 

Sustainable Communities Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date: Wednesday, 28 March 2012 
Time: 
 

6.00 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall 
 
Contact Officer: Mark Delap 
Tel: 0151 691 8500 
e-mail: markdelap@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. MEMBERS CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 Members are asked to consider whether they have personal or 

prejudicial interests in connection with any item(s) on this agenda and, 
if so, to declare them and state what they are. 
 
Members are reminded that they should also declare, pursuant to 
paragraph 18 of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules, whether 
they are subject to a party whip in connection with any item(s) to be 
considered and, if so, to declare it and state the nature of the whipping 
arrangement. 
 

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 10) 
 
 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 30 January 2012. 

 
3. CORPORATE GOAL UPDATE - PARKS AND OPEN SPACES 

(Pages 11 - 22) 
 
4. PARKS AND COUNTRYSIDE SERVICES PROCUREMENT 

EXERCISE (PACSPE) - INTERNAL/EXTERNAL BID COMPARISON  
 
 To follow 

 
5. CORPORATE GOAL UPDATE - LEISURE AND CULTURE 

FACILITIES (Pages 23 - 28) 
 
6. LIBRARIES STRATEGY (Pages 29 - 56) 
 
7. PROGRESS ON THE CONTROL OF ILLICIT SALES TO YOUNG 

PEOPLE (Pages 57 - 64) 
 

Public Document Pack



8. 2011/2012 THIRD QUARTER PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
REPORT (Pages 65 - 76) 

 
9. DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED POWERS - DIRECTOR 

OF TECHNICAL SERVICES (Pages 77 - 80) 
 
10. DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED POWERS - DIRECTOR 

OF LAW HR AND ASSET MANAGEMENT (Pages 81 - 82) 
 
11. FORWARD PLAN  
 
 The Forward Plan for the period April to July 2012 has now been 

published on the Council’s intranet/website. Members are invited to 
review the Plan prior to the meeting in order for the Sustainable 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee to consider, having 
regard to the work programme, whether scrutiny should take place of 
any items contained within the Plan and, if so, how it could be done 
within relevant timescales and resources. 
 

12. REVIEW OF SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME  
 
 To follow 

 
13. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR 

(PART 1)  
 
14. EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF MEMBERS OF THE 

PUBLIC  
 
 The public may be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 

the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information. 
 
RECOMMENDED – That in accordance with section 100A (4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting 
during consideration of the following items of business, on the grounds 
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
by the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended) to 
that Act. The public interest test has been applied and favours 
exclusion. 
 

15. EXEMPT APPENDIX  
 
 The exempt appendix to the report of the Director of Technical 

Services ‘Parks and Countryside Services Procurement Exercise 
(PACSPE) - Internal/External Bid Comparison’ (Agenda item 4) is to 
follow. 
 

16. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR 
(PART 2)  

 
 
 



����������	
��

�����	�
��	���	�
���

��������
��

���		


�
��������	
������
���
���

�
�
������� ���������
� ������������
��
�
� ���������
�� �����������

��������
�� �!���
��"�����
�

 �"������#��$�
%�"��!����
��"�����$��
 �"�����$��
�

��&������� ���������
� '�"�����$���'��&������(������!�����
�

����������$��
��
'��������������

���������
�� ���������
�

�� $����
�

�
�

)
� 
	
�	��
���	
��
�������
�
�	����������
��
���	�	��


�
��$��
��*�
����!�������������
�*�����
����������&�
�������
�&
�+�������� ����
�����
��������������*�������� ���$������� ������#���������� �(����� ��������
�� ���$�����������
*���������*�
�,�
�
��$��
��*�
��
�$���������������������������������
���&�
���������&�
�#
�&���-��(�
����./�
/��*����� �
�������
�����
��%������*�����
� �����*�
�� ���+���� ��� �� &�
���
*��&���������������*�����������$�����������������
���������(�������������
���������������
��������
���(�����*��&&��#��

��#�$���,�
�
���������
�"������#��$������
�����&�
����������
��������/�
�����(������$&���$��������
�#��������$�-�0�"�

������$��������#��1
��&��������%�&�
�������$������)2�&����,�
�

)�� 
����	�


�
��������
 �
 ����
 ���
 � !"���
 �#
 ���
 ���� !$
 ����
 �!
 %&
 �����'�(
 %)**
 '�

�++(����,

�

)�� ���-����	
-���


�
'������
������*������������$�������22�����2-���������$��
���
�����������$$������
�������
��� ������ &�
��� �(� ������
&�
���� �����*������ ���� 
�$��,� 3�����$$������ ����
����� ���� ��#��� �(� �� $������ *����� ���� ����� 
�(�

��� ��� ���� ./�
/��*� ����  �
������
��$$�����������������������������$�����#�����������$��
���
����$������2)�
�(�
���
����*�����*����������
�����������������*����������
&�
��������,�
�
3��� �
�(�� ��
&�
���� ����� ���� 
�&�
�� �(� ���� ����(� 45�����/�� *����� ���� �����
�������
��� ��� �������� ��� ���� $�����#� ��� -� ����$��
� *�
�� �������
��� ��� ����
��$$������������������
����#�����$$�����(
�$���$��
�,�
�

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 2

Page 1



����$��
�$��������$��
��(�#���
��� &������ ��� 
�������� ��� ������
&�
�������������
��$���&���(���������������*�
��
���/�����������*�
!��(����� �������������$$��������
.6 ���$$�����,�3�������
��������$$�����������������
&�
������������!�������������

������������&���(�����
#���,�
�
.�����������������������
�"��!�����������������������������
����������*���0��
�
��������
 .*)/)0
 �
 ����
 ���
 #����1 !$
 2����!��
 #�(�
 ���
 '�� �
 �#
 �� �

���� �����
(��+�!��
��
���
��(+�(���
-��!
�




�,
3	�	���
-�����



.*0
 ���(�
 �(�
 ��4�!�
 �#
 +( �( � ��
 ����
 ����
 '��!
 � ���(
 �� ����
 #(��
 ���


2"((�!�
 2�(+�(���
 +��!
 �(
 ��
 ����(��5
 1���(��
 ��1!
 ��
 ��
 '�

���! !$����,




.%0
 ��
 ���1�
 �
 ����
 �#
 2��� ���!�
 ��
 �!$�$���!�6
 2�!�"���� �!
 �!�


 !�������!�
�
�����
�(�
�2�(2��5
��!� �!��,



.&0
 �!
+�(� 2"��(
���(�
 �
!�
��!� �!
�#
�!5
�!!"��
'"�$��
2�!�"���� �!,



.70
 ���(�
  �
!�
��!� �!
�#
 ���
��(���$ 2
���!$�
-(�$(����6
�(
�#
���
!���


#�(
���
��"!2 �
��
2��!$�,



.80
 ���(�
  �
 !�
 (�#�(�!2�
 ��
 (��"2 !$
 ���
 2����
 �#
 ("!! !$
 ���
 2�"!2 �
 9


'"(��"2(�25,



.:0
 ���(�
  �
 !�
 (�#�(�!2�
 ��
 ����$�� �!
 �(
 ��������
 ��2 � �!
 ��; !$
 �(


'"�$���,



.<0
 ���(�
 �
!�
��!� �!
�#
�(��
��("��,



.=0
 ���(�
 �
!�
��!� �!
�#
���
���"!��(5
�!�
����"! �5
��2��(6
�(
�#
$(�!��,



�,
��
	
>	�
����	�
�	�	����
��
�?��
��

���		



.@0
 ���(�
 �
!�
��!� �!
�#
� '(�( ��



.*)0
 ���(�
 �
!�
��!� �!
�#
%)�+�
4�!��



.**0
 ���(�
 �
!�
��!� �!
�#
��2����
?�(�6
���+ ��
(�2�!�
+"'� 2
������
(�+�(��


��5 !$
 ��1
 '��
 � ((��
  �
 #�(
 ��2����
 (������
 ���+ ���
 ��� �� �!�
 �!�

2�!� � �!�,
 .��' !��
�$(���
�!*<

�(2�
����
���
(�2����!��� �!
�#
 ���

��2����
 �2("� !5
 ��� �1
 .��������	 
������	 
���0
 '�
 + 2;��
 "+
  !
 ���

��(+�(���
-��!0,




.*%0
 ���(�
  �
!�
��!� �!
�#
3(��!
��2�!���$5
 9
����(
	!�($5,
���
+���$�
  !


���
2"((�!�
+��!
A1�
1 ��
��;�
�"(�
���
#"�"(�
��"!2 �
+(�B�2��
 !2�(+�(���

$(��!
��2�!���$5
�!�
�"��� !�'��
+(��"2��
�!�
"($�
+( ����
������+�(�

��
��
���
����C
���
'��!
�������,





Page 2



.*&0
 ���(�
 �
!�
��!� �!
�#
����"! �5
D"�� 2�,



.*70
 ����
���
-��!
2�!�� !�
!�
���� �
 !
(���� �!
��
��($���

�

)	� ���		���	�	
 	������
	����
 �	����	�
 ��������
 8�?
 ������

�	��	�


�
3�����
����
��(�3��������� �
/�����&
�������������
��7�
���%�/��*��(���
(�
$�����
�(� ���� 4�/�
��$������  �
���������  �
/����� ����
���� *���� 8�((�,� ��� &
�/����� ���
�&������������&
�#
����$�����������$��
��(�*�
!���
��$�������*�
������
�������
��$$����������
������
���
��� �$�������
9� 
�(�
���������#���#����� ����&�����#�2:
���
� �
��!� ������� �&&�
������� ����� �5������ *������ ���� ����
���,� ��� 
�;�������
��$��
�� ��� �������
� ����
� ��

���� ��/��� �(� �����(�������*���� ���� ������
����(�*�����
����������� ���� ��
���� ��������#� ��
/������ ��� �
��
� ��� ��(�
$� ���� �������� �/�
� ����
�
&�����#�������
�������(�����(���
���(���������
���,�
�
���
�(�

��� ��������������������/�$�����*������ ��������
��������&
�/��������������(�
<��� ��
(�
$����� '�������
� 
������� (�
� �
��7�
��,� %�&
��������/��� �(� ���� 8�((��
����#�$����3��$�#�/�������������&
��������������*�
!�&
�#
��������&
�/��������
���������(���������
����$���#�$��������#�/�
�������

��#�$����,�
�
3��� ��
����
� ����� ���#��� ���� /��*�� �(� ��$��
�� ��� 
�������� ��� �� ��$��
� �(� *�
!�
��
��$���&���*��������(���������
��7�
�	,�
�
��������
�




.*0
 ����
 ���
 >�5
 -�(#�(��!2�
 �!� 2���(
  !#�(��� �!
 �!�
 ���
 2�((��+�!� !$


� $�
������
�#
��(� 2�
��
1� 2�
���5
(�����
'�
!����,



.%0
 ����
 ���
 #����1 !$
 +(�B�2��
 � $�� $����
 #�(
 ����!� �!
  !
 %)*%9%)*&
 ��


#"(���(
 �+(���
��(� 2�
(�� �' � �56
2"�����(
��� �#�2� �!
�!�
�!��!2�
���

�!� (�!��!���
E"�� �5
�#
� ((��6
'�
�!��(���
�





•� ��(���
����!� !$/
��+(�� !$
	!� (�!��!���
F"�� �5
1 ��
-�(� 2"��(


��2"�
�!
���"2 !$
������
�#
��$
��"� !$,

•� ��!��� !�� �!
 �#
 �����2���
 ���� !$���
 ��252� !$
 �
 � �;


���"2� �!

•� �!2(��� !$
 ��252� !$
 .��
 �"++�(�
 ���
 ��"!2 �
 ��� 2�
 �#
 
�� �!


+�����
�!
*%
��2��'�(
%)**
.� !"��
@)
(�#�(�0,

•� ��!�(�2�
��� �1
�!�
����2 ����
��!�# ��
���� ��� �!,




.&0
 ����
���
� (�2��(
�#
��2�! 2��
��(� 2��
'�
(�E"�����
��
(�+�(�
��
���
!�G�


���� !$
�#
���
���� ����
1 ��
�!5
+(�+����
��(� 2�
2��!$��
����
�( ��

��
 �
 (��"��
 �#
 ���
 2�!2�"� �!
 �#
 ���
 -( 2�
 ����(��"��
 ���+�(
 2�!�(�2�

(�� �1
��
 ����
 ���
��(���$ 2
  �+� 2�� �!�
��5
'�
�2("� ! ���
'�#�(�
���5

�(�
+(���!���
��
��' !��
 !
�+( �
%)*%,




.70
 ����
 ���
 ���� ����
 !����
 ����
 '����
 "+�!
 ���
 ���� ��
 2�!�� !��
1 �� !


� �
 (�+�(�6
 ���
 � (�2��(
 �#
 ��2�! 2��
 ��(� 2��
  !��!��
 ��
 (�2����!�
 ��

���
 ��' !��
 ����
 ���(�
 �(�
 !�
 2"((�!�
 2�!2�(!�
 ���(
 ���
 	!� (�!��!���

��(����2�!�
 ��(� 2��
 ��!�(�2�
 1 ��
 (�$�(��
 ��
 ���
 E"�� �5
 �#
 ��(� 2�


Page 3



��� ��(5
 ����
 ���"��
 +(���!�
 ���
 2�!� !"�� �!
 �#
 �� �
 2�!�(�2�
1 ��
 � ##�

'�5�!�
���
%)*&
'(��;
2��"��6
���"��
��' !��
1 ��
��
2�!� ��(
�
#"�"(�

��� !$�
 +�2;�$�
 +(���!���
 '5
 � ##�
  !
 (��"(!
 #�(
 ��2"( !$
 ���
 2�!�(�2�

"!� �
%)%),




.80
 ����
���
���!;�
�#
 ���
���� ����
'�
�22�(���
��
�����
��"!2 �
�## 2�(�


�!�
���'�(�
�#
 ���
� ##�

�!�$���!�
����
 #�(
 ���
  �+(����
 ������
�#

+�(#�(��!2�
 �#
 ���
 	!� (�!��!���
 ��(����2�!�
 ��(� 2��
 ��!�(�2�
  !

%)**9%)*%,


�
)9� �	��	�
 ��
 	
	�3	���
 �	�-���	
 ��
 �?	
 3��
 ��--��
 �����-����


���	����3
�	����	9
��	���
��
���	
�	�
%)**


�
3�����
����
��(�3��������� �
/�����
�&�
����������������$�����#����������9�=�/�$��
�
�
���� ������������ �$������ �>?� 
�(�
��� ���� 
�;������� ����� �� 
�/��*� ��� ����
��!���
���������
������$�+�
�#������
�&�����������((��������$��?


���$����������@����*��
���� ��
����� �
���� ��
��#� =�/�$��
� �
���� �(��
� �� *���
� $���� (
����
��� ��� ����
+���������(����#�
�@�������������!��%����������#�*���
����&��
����������#�����&&���
���*�
!,�
�
%�&
��������/���(
�$�=��������1
�������(
�$�A������A���������&
�/����������
���
��(�(�
�
��$��
�� (
�$� ����� �
#����������� &�
�&����/�,� 3���� ��������� ���� ������ �(� ����
&
����$�����&
�/��������������(� ����*�
!�����
��!����������
������� ����#�����&&���
*���
����
����������(��$����
,�3�����
����
���$$����������������������#�������
���
�����
��*�
������
�������(
�������������((������&
�&�
����������
����������
��������������
B�&�!�C���������
�����������*�����
�������������������
�����&�*�
����
�&�����(
�$������*��
�����,� ��*�/�
�� =�������� #
��� ����������  �������� ��*�
�� *��� ��&������ �� ���$� ���

�&��
�����(������$$��������,�
�
3�����
����
���$$�������������$��������&
�&�
���������#�����&&�����
����
���*������2�
����
�������������
�������&
�&�
�����*�
���������������$�
#�����&��$����������
������
�(� ���� ���
�&����� ��� ����
� #��� ��&&��,� ��� ��������� ���� �������C�� 
��&����� ��� ����
��������� ���� ���������� ����� ������#�� ���� #��� ���
�&����� *��� ����
��� ���� �� ��������

��&������������ ���� #���
��� ������� ���� *�������#� �(� ��
� ��$$�������� ���� 
���������
*��,����������((���
�����������=��������1
��� ��� 
��&����� ��� ����
� 
�;������ ��������#�
����$$��������� &
���� �((���
� ��������� &�
!��#� (����������� ���,� =��������1
��� ���� �����
$���� �� 
�;����� (�
� ����������� ��� ��&&����#� (���� ��� ����
� ��#����
�� ���� ����
�5&
������ #
�������� ��� ���((� ��� ���� @����*����$$����������
���*��� ���� &
�/�����
����
��#����=��������1
������((��������
���(D,�
�
3�����
����
���$$�����������������#������
��&���������������������*����*��������
��
*�
������$��
��(������������������
���(
�$���� ��������#����������(�
�������
�
����(�
�
������������ ��$$������ #
��&�� ���� ��$$������ 
�&
��������/��� ��� ������� ��� ����
��$�����
������&������(�
��&����������$���
���&����(����������,���������&
�&����������
�� #�������� ����$���� ���� �
�����#� ������� ��� &
�/����� ��� ���� ��$$������ #
��&�� ���
����� �����*���������*�
���(���*���� ���������*��� ��!���� ������ 
��&������ ������� ���
����
������ ���� �#������C� 
����� ���� ��&���������,� 3��� ��
����
� 
�(�

��� ����� ��� ����
�5��������
��&�����(
�$�����������
�#������$�����������$$�������&���(��������������
��
/����&
�/��������2�"�/���@�����%�����*�������!�&�� 
����������&� ���������*����
�/����,�
�

Page 4



��� ���� ����� ��##������ ����� =�������� 1
��� ������� 
�/��*� ����
� �$�
#�����
��$&�������������$��������� �������
�� ����� ����$����/����
����� 
����/��� (���������
��$&��������� ��� ����� ��� *��� &
���������� ��� ������ ���� (��������� *�

���,� 3���� *���
��&�������� �$&�
����� *���� ��� ��$�� ��� (�����#� ���� ������#� ���� ��� 
�(�

��� ���
���������� ��(�
$������ 
����/�����
��#� ���� 
�/��*��*����� ���������� �������$���(� ����
$�
������
���
����������((�������������#������
�&�����*�
��*�

�������&�������
������
���
�����
�������������*���������������������((�
������(���
��(���������,�
�
��������
�




.*0
 ����
���
(�+�(�
'�
!����
�!�
���
���!;�
�#
���
���� ����
'�
�22�(���
��


���
 1��
 ��� ����
 '���
  !
 ���
 (��+�!��
 ��
 ���
  !2 ��!�
 �!�
  !
 ���
 +���

 !2 ��!�
(�� �1,




.%0
 ����
 �!
 	��($�!25
 -��!! !$
 �!#�(��� �!
 ���#���
 '�
 +(�+�(��
 #�(
 ���


2���"! �5
2�!�(��
�!�
$(�"+�,

�

)?� ���-����	
 3���
 -��3�	��
 �	-���
 �
 H
���
����3
 ����	
 ��

	������3��3
����	
�	�������
���
�	������3H


�
3�����
����
� �(� 3���������  �
/����� &
�/����� ��� �&����� ��� ���� 3���������  �
/�����
����/�
�� ����� �3 ��� ����� ��&&�
���� ���� ��
&�
���� 1���� ��� E����$���� *����� ���
�����
�#��#� *����� 
��������� ���� 
�������#F,� ���� 
�&�
�� ��/�
��� �*�� !��� �
���� �(�
����/����
�/��/��#��
�����0��
�
•� 4�������#� ���� 
�����#� �*�
������ ��� 
������ ���� �$����� �(� ���������� *�����

����#�������������(���������$&
�/��#�
�������#�
����G�����
�
•� ����������#� ��#�� ��/���� �(� &�
����&������ ��� ���� !�
������ 
�������#� ����$��

��
��#����������/�
���(���
��������*������������������
/���,�
�
���
�(�

�������������$�������#
��������������������$������>
���������$��
��
����

�(�
��� ��� 
�������� ��� B'��
�����#� %�������#C� ���� ��$$������ ����� ������#�� �� (����

��&����� ��� ��� *����� ��� &
�������� ��� ������
���$�����#� �(� ���� ��$$������� ��$��
���$������(����*�
������������������
�&�
�,�
�
���&
�/��������������(�&�
(�
$������/�
������������/������
���*��������*����������
�$&
�/�$�����������

?7�

)��������
�(�

������������
���#����&&
�����(�
�������5��
��#��� ���
�,� ��� ��#���#����� ���� ��#��(������ &
�#
���� ��� %�������#� ���� "�����
%��������� �����
�/������� '�������/��� ���� &
�&����� �� ��$��
� �(� (���
�� &
�+����� (�
�
��$��
�C��������
�����,�
�
��������
�




.*0
 ����
 ���
+(�$(���
�#
 ���
%)**9%)*%
��*
��� ��(5
-��!I
'�
!����
�!�
 ���


���!;�
 �#
 ���
 ���� ����
 '�
 �22�(���
 ��
 ���
 �## 2�(�
 #�(
 ���
 �G2����!�

1�(;
"!��(��;�!,




.%0
 ����
 ���
  !2�"� �!
 �#
 ���
 #����1 !$
 +(�B�2��
  !
 ���
 �(�#�
 %)*%9%)*&
 ��*


��� ��(5
-��!
'�
�!��(���
�





Page 5



•� ��5
� ++ !$
�#
?�"������
�����
 !
����51�5�

•� �����
	��2�( 2��
�!�
	��2�(�! 2
	E" +��!�
.�			0
��252� !$

•� �( !$
� ��
��� �1

•� >�('� ��
�����
	��2�(�! 2
�!�
	��2�( 2��
	E" +��!�
.�			0

•� ��+(�� !$
��252� !$
��(�"$�
�!2�!� ��
�2�����

•� 3���(!��!�
�"!� !$
 ��
 �!2(����
�����2� �!
�(�E"�!25
�#
��� �"��


�����

•� ��( �����
�(��
��252� !$

•� ���(
>!�2; !$
��
-(�����
���
����
����
?���
�����
���+� $!

•� ����
�����
� $����(
-(�B�2�
.���(��
-�� � �!0

•� �����(2 ��
�����
��252� !$


�
))� ���-����	
 3���
 -��3�	��
 �	-���
 �
 H?��	
 ?�3?
 ���������
 ��


	������
	����
F������
������
������H


�
3��� ��
����
� �(� 3���������  �
/����� 
�&�
���� �&��� ���� ��

���� &�������� �(� ����
3���������  �
/���������/�
�� ����� �3 ���� *����� ��&&�
���� ���� �
��7�
��� ��
&�
����
#����� E��� ������	
�� ���
������ ��� �
�	��
��
���� ����	��� ��������	�����,� 3��� �����
��$��� ��� �����/�� �� ��$��
� �(� ��+����/��� ��� �
��
� ��� ��&&�
�� ���� ����/�
�� �(� ����
�������C����
&�
�������������������
����
���#���#���������$��
��(���*���������/��������
���� ����� ��������� *������ ��,� ��� ��$$������ �&��� &
�#
���� ��
��#� �
��7�
��� ����
���������� ����� �/�
�� ������� *������ ���� ����/�
�� ����� ���� �� ��
#��� ������� �(� 1
�����
*��������(�
$������������&
�+����*������������#������
#����,�
�
��������������������$��
��(���������/���(�
���$��
���������
������(�
������������������
3 ��&����(�
��
��7�
�	����������#�0��
�
•� %������#�@�/�����(���#�H�����#��
���������"�

���
•� %������#�����=�$��
��(�3�
���H��:3�&&�����
����"�

���
•� 4�/�
��$������'$&
�/�$��������"�

��C��.((�%����������������
•� 45&��������(�"�

��C��1
�((���� ���
��#�1
��&�
�
������#�� ��$��
�� ����
���� ���� ��������/��� &
�&����� (�
� ���������� ��� ���� ����� (�
�
�
��7�
�	�� ��������
� 
�(�

��� �&���(������� ��� ����&
����$��(� ��#� (�����#����"�

��C��
�������������������
��
������������(�$������(�
�
��
���������&�
&�����������##������
����� ����� ������ (�
$� &�
�� �(� ���� ��$$�����C�� *�
!� &
�#
�$$�� ��� ���� (�
����$��#�
$�����&������
,�3�����
����
���##������ ���������*�
!���
��$�����������5&���������
&�
!������������������&
�&����������/����#��������
�&�
�������(���
��$�����#��&���
��������
�����&�����������&���������$��"����������
�����������/�������������������
��#�������$���������,� '��
��&��������(�
���
������
����5&
�����������$��
�� ���
���� &
����$�� ����������� *���� ���(� (���� ���� �� ���!� �(� ���
���� ��� ��� �
���� �(�

��&������������ ���� ��
����
� ���������� ����� ���� $����
� *��� ����#� ��/����#����� ����
������������*����"�

�����
���
���&���$���*�
����#���#,�
�
��������
�




.*0
 ����
���
(�+�(�
'�
!����
�!�
���
+(�$(���
����
 !
��� ��( !$
��%�
J
���	

����	���������	��	�������������	�������	������	�������
-��!
#�(
%)**9%)*%6

'�
�!��(���,





Page 6



.%0
 ����
���
+(�B�2��
� $�� $����
#�(
 !2�"� �!
 !
���
��%
+��!
#�(
%)*%9%)*&6

'�
�!��(���,


�
)2� ������
���
��	
�?��3	
3���-
������
�	-���



�
3�����
����
��(�@�*���%���������������#�$����&
�/���������&������������*�
!��(�
���� "�

��� ���$���� ����#�� 1
��&� ��
��#� �
��G� ���� ���#��� ����
��$���� �(� ����
��/���&$�����(���
�&����$����"�

������$��������#�� �
���#�,�
�
��� ��$$������ ����� ���� �������C�� ��
��� ��$$��$���� ��� ������� ��� ���$���� ����#���
*����� 
�������� ��� �������&������(� �� ���$���� ����#����
���#�� ����

2�� ������
������
$�
�������
�������:�
��������������������
����
����������������
#���((�������,�3����
*�����*�
�(��������������
&�
����&
��
�������
�����������������C����
����(���&
��������
������������ ���� �����$�� ��������*�
!���� ���������&������� ����5&����������#��� ��� ����
���$���,���*�/�
�� ���������������������� 
��&�������;������� ��� �������$�����#�����
������ ���� ���� "�

��� ���$���� ����#�� 1
��&� ���� ����� ��/���&��� ����� �� ������
&�
���
���&�*����
�&
�����������(
�$�/�
������
#�����������(
�$���((�
���������
�,�3���
#
��&�$������������
�����#�"�

��:*������
����
���������&
�#
�$$��*�����������������
�������� �(� &�
���
� �
#����������,� '��$��� ��� �� 
�#���
� ������ ���� &
�#
���� ���� �����

�&�
������
��#���������$$������������
��#������@����� �
���#�����
���
���&��@ ��,�
�
3�����
����
�
�&�
����������������$��������#�� �
���#��(
�$��

2�*�����*��������
����&�����,�������(������������������������*�������������*�������$&��$����������
���� �#����� ���� $�/��� (�
*�
�� ���� ���� �����5�� ����#��,� 3��
�(�
��� ���� "�

���
���$���� ����#�� 1
��&� &
�&����� ��� ��������� �� ������������� &
������ ������#� ��� ����
��/���&$���� �(� �� ��*� 
�&����$���� ��
���#�,� ������#�� ���� &
��������� *��� ���� ��
�������
������#���������� ���������� ����������� �������&������(�"�

��C�� (�
��� ��
���#�����
/�
������(���#�������#�������&����������
�$�����������������
����������#�/�
�$����
����
�/�����$���:
���������������*�����������$����������,�3�����
���#��*������
�(�
��
��/���#�������������&�
���������:�
�������#�(
�$�*�
!�(�
������������,�
�
��������
�




.*0
 ����
 ���
�2� � �5
�#
 ���
� ((��
�� ����
���!$�
3(�"+
 #(��
%)**
�!�
 ���


�2� �!�
 �#
 +�(�!�(
 �($�! ��� �!�
 2�!�� !��
  !
 ���
 � ((���1 ��
 ��('�!

���"2� �!
-(�$(����
'�
!����,




.%0
 ����
 ���
+�(�!�(�� +K�
+(�+����
1�(;
 ��
������+
�
 (�+��2���!�
2� ����


2��!$�
��(���$5
#�(
� ((��
'�
�!��(���,

�

)-� �������	�
�����	3�


�
3�����&��������(�45�����/�7��
����
��(�H�������&
���������� �
���#��(�
�@��
�
�������
"�

����E"�

���@��
�
����0���=�*����&��
F��*��������������(�
$����������&
�/������
�����(�
�����$��������#�������!����������#�������@��
�
�� �
/����*���(����#������
�������� ���� ����������,� 3��� ����$���� *����� ��� ���+���� ��� 
�#���
� 
�/��*� ���� ���
��$$������ ������ #�/��� ���� @��
�
���� ����#
������ *���� ���� .���  ��&�  ��&��� ����
 �
���#�� ���� ����� ��/���&��� ��!��#� �������� �(� ���� �������C�� �����$�
� �������
 �
���#�,������$$������ ����� ����@��
�
�� �
/����&��������!��� 
���� �����&&�
���#���
��$��
��(�!�����+����/���������������������
&�
����������������� �
���#�����
������
����/������(�
�������
/�����������
����������*���$���
������������������
��&����/�����
���
������,�3�����
����
�
�(�

��������#���#��������������������$$������������(�����

Page 7



�����
��������������/���� �
���#��� ����� ���*��� ��!���� �����*��������� ����������������
��������������������$����$�������#���
$���/���&$����*�������������
������&�������
�����((�������*��,�
�
3�������
� ���#��� ���
�(�������� ��� ���*���� ������������� ���� ����� ����
��!��� ��� ���
*����*�
�����������&
�&��������������������������
�������������
�
�����
����
�#
��&�,�
��$��
���5&
��������/��*������ ����&
�&���������#��� ����&����#� ��$���*���������
����(���������!������
�#
��&��*���������������������(��
�$�������
�
�������8�
!��������
"��������� 8����#���� ���� "���� <�
��,� ��*�/�
�� ��$��
�� ��$$������ ����� �����
�5�����/���������������������!���&����������*�����#���#���������� �
���#�����������
�������(�
$��������

�������
�
�����#�,�
�
.����$������������������
�������������������������������
��������������*���0��
�
��������
.:/8
2�(( ��
�!
���
��� (K�
2��� !$
����0
�
����
2�!� ��(�� �!
�#
���

� '(�( ��
��(���$5
'�
��#�((��
"!� �
���
2��+��� �!
�#
���
2�!�"���� �!
+(�2���

�!�
���
� �1�
�#
���
� '(�( ��
�!�
"��(
$(�"+�
����
'��!
��;�!
 !��
�22�"!�,

�

)>� �	������
 ��>	�
 ���	�
 �	�	3��	�
 -��	��
 �
 �	��	�
 ���	-����	

���
?�3?����
���	�
���
���������
����	��
���
	���>


�
3�����
����
��(�3��������� �
/�����
�&�
�����&�����������&�������(��������
�����
�
����#����� �����
���� *���� 
��&���� ��� ���� &
���
�$���� &
������ (�
� ���� &
�/������ �(�
��#�*���� ������ ���� ����������  �
/���� H
�$�*�
!,� ��� 
�&�
���� ����� ����
&
���
�$���� �5�
����� *��� ����
��!��� ��� ������
�� "���� ���� ������
� �������� ���
���+��������*����������
��4����������������*����&���������������
�������
�������������
=�
���"����� ��������#� ���� (�/����
�������� �����
������� ������� 8�
��#�� �������� ����
 �
�&���
����������������,�
�
������������������������(� ��������
����������$$������������������������������
/����
�(� �����������C����#�*�������*�
!�*�
���������
�����/�
�(������/�������������/�
����
������������������
��
�������(��������*�
!����&
�������������&�
(�
$�������������
��
�������
������*������������������&
�������������������������&
��
������#�&
�#
�$$����(�
$����������,�'��
��&����������
�;������������
����
�&
�&��������&
�/��������(�#�
���
�����������*���������������
���������$��
�,�
�
��������
�
����
���
(�+�(�
'�
!����,

�

2
� �	�������
 ��>	�
 ���	�
 �	�	3��	�
 -��	��
 �
 ���	����
 ��

�	�?�����
�	����	�


�
3��� ��
����
� �(� 3���������  �
/����� 
�&�
����� ��� ����
������ *���� ���� �&&
�/���
 ���$���(�����#��������&��������&&����$�����(�����
����
������
�����#�����&�*�
��
(�
� ���� �&&���� '�����������������������������(�4����
�����I�
�����������#�� �#��G�
���� �&&����(�����
��#� (�
� ����H��
�����/������3����
���������(�
���������
�G� ����
8
�$��
��#��  ������� H����
��#�� ��
�&��� %�&����$���,� 4���� �(� ���� &
���
�$����
�5�
������*�
������
��!������ �����������C����
&�
�����
���
�$����A���� ����#� ����
�����
����� �����
��#� &
������ ������� 3��� ������ ���� ��� ���� ������ ���� ��*���7$����
�����$���������/����#����������
�*�������&���,�
�
��������
�
����
���
(�+�(�
'�
!����,

�

Page 8



2�� �	�������
��>	�
���	�
�	�	3��	�
-��	��
 �
���	����
��
���6
?�

���
���	�

���3	
	��


�
3�����
����
� �(� @�*���%���������������#�$���� 
�&�
����� �������
������*���� ����
�&&
�/��� ���$���(�����#��������(����������(�����#����������
����*����
��&�����������
�&&����$�����(�����
����
��&�
�������������
�����
�����
��%�����9,�,� ��������������
$�����#� �(� ���� ��$$������� �����
�� ���� ����� ����&���� (�
� *�
!�� ��� 1
��/���
�
8���
��$G������!����$$����������
������ ����
���#�A���G�����"������
���@����
��
����
�,�
�
��������
�
����
���
(�+�(�
'�
!����,

�

2�� �������
-���


�
3�����
����
��(�@�*���%���������������#�$����
�&�
�������������H�
*�
�������(�
�
���� &�
���� H��
��
�� ��� ���� �
��� ���� ����� &��������� ��� ���� �������C��
���
����7*������,���$��
�������������/��������
�/��*����������&
��
��������$�����#����
�
��
� (�
� ����  ����������� ��$$�������� ./�
/��*� ����  �
������ ��$$������ ���
�������
����/��#�
�#�
���������*�
!�&
�#
�$$���*�����
���
���������������!��&������(�
���� ���$������������*�������������������� �(�������*������������������*������
���/����
��$������������
����
���,�
�
��������
�
����
���
��(1�(�
-��!
'�
!����,

�

2	� �	��	�
��
��������
���>
-��3��

	


�
3�����$$������
����/�������&��������
���������������*�
!�&
�#
�$$������*�
����!���
����������
�*�����
���������������� ��&����������������������� ��� (�
��������
���������
�����-���
����
���$�����#,�
�
��������
�
����
 ���
��(;
-(�$(����
'�
��( ��
�!�
���
#����1 !$
(�+�(��
'�

+(���!���
#�(
2�!� ��(�� �!
��
���
%=

�(2�
%)*%
���� !$
�




� (�2��(
�#
��2�! 2��
��(� 2��

•� ��(+�(���
 3���
 �!!"��
 -(�$(���
 ��+�(�
 �
 J-(�� ��
 �!�
 
� !�� !
 ? $�


F"�� �5
-�(;�
�!�
�+�!
�+�2��
 !
-�(�!�(�� +
1 ��
��2��
����"! � ��K


•� ��(+�(���
3���
�!!"��
-(�$(���
��+�(�
�
J-(�� ��
? $�
F"�� �56
���"�
#�(



�!�5
�� �"(�
�!�
�"��"(��
��2 � � ��
#�(
� ((��
��� ��!��K

•� -���-	
�!��(!��9	G��(!��
� �
���+�( ��!



� (�2��(
�#
��16
?�
�!�
�����

�!�$���!�

•� � ((��
�� ����
���!$�
3(�"+
�!!"��
��+�(�

•� ��� �1
�#
�!��(�$�
�����
-(���!� �!
�!�
	!#�(2���!�



��+"�5
�� �#
	G�2"� ��9� (�2��(
�#
� !�!2�

•� � '(�( ��
��(���$5
�
�+����
�!
�"�2���
�#
��!�"���� �!

�
�

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE – 28TH MARCH 2012 

 
SUBJECT: CORPORATE GOAL PROGRESS REPORT – 

“PROVIDE AND MAINTAIN HIGH QUALITY 

PARKS & OPEN SPACES IN PARTNERSHIP 

WITH LOCAL COMMUNITIES” 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF TECHNICAL SERVICES 

 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

CLLR LESLEY RENNIE, CULTURE 

TOURISM AND LEISURE 

 

KEY DECISION?   
 

NO 

  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Members with an update on progress in 
delivering the Parks Modernisation Project that supports the delivery of the 
Corporate Goal “Provide and maintain high quality parks & open spaces in 
partnership with local communities”. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 The Parks & Countryside Service Modernisation Project is a complex multi-
disciplinary project with the purpose of establishing a modern, cost effective 
and efficient service comparable to that offered by the private sector by Spring 
2013. 

 
2.2 An Outline Delivery Plan was endorsed by Cabinet at their meeting on 24 

November 2011 (Minute 205 refers) and has been set out under four key 
workstreams all reporting to a Project Board: 

 
Ø Policy, Processes and Performance 
Ø Human Resources 
Ø Assets 
Ø Communication and Engagement 

 
 In addition there was an urgent short-term project to integrate the Highways 

Grounds Maintenance Service into the Council for 1st February 2012 on the 
expiry of the existing external contract. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 11



 
2.3 This report provides a progress update on the modernisation of the service and 

achievement of the Delivery Plan endorsed by Cabinet. 
 
3.0 PARKS MODERNISATION PROJECT PROGRESS UPDATE 

3.1 Highways Integration Project 
 
Following the decision by Cabinet not to award an external contract for the delivery 
of Parks & Countryside Services, an urgent priority has been to integrate the 
Highways Grounds Maintenance Service previously delivered by Continental 
Landscapes Limited into the Council for the expiry of the existing contract on 31st 
January 2012. 
 
The Highways Integration Project was established with the purpose of ensuring the 
smooth integration of the Highways Grounds Maintenance Service back into the 
Council by this date and focused on three main strands: 
 

Ø Human Resources – to ensure the successful TUPE transfer of Continental 
Landscapes Limited employees into Council employment 

Ø Depot Arrangements – to ensure appropriate interim depot arrangements 
were in place to efficiently and effectively deliver the service in advance of 
the major Parks & Countryside Service depot review being undertaken later 
this year 

Ø Equipment and Vehicles – to ensure the necessary equipment and vehicles 
were in place to efficiently and effectively deliver the service via the best 
value solution available to the Council bearing in mind the short timescale 
for service mobilisation 

 
Cabinet was provided with an update on the integration of the Highways Grounds 
Maintenance Service into the Council on 12th January 2012 and this included gaining 
approval to use £500,000 of the existing Capital Programme for Cultural Services 
assets to purchase the necessary equipment and vehicles to deliver the service 
(Minute 261 refers).  
 
This equipment and vehicles have now been purchased and the majority is now in 
place being used for service delivery. This has included £54,500 spent on 
purchasing second-hand equipment from Continental Landscapes Limited as 
reported to Cabinet on 15th March 2012 under Contract Procedure Rule 21 
‘Exceptions to Procurement Procedure’. 
 
As reported to Cabinet on 12th January 2012 an options appraisal exercise was 
undertaken to establish an interim depot arrangement and the service is now being 
delivered out of Reeds Lane depot in Moreton, the same depot as previously used 
by Continental Landscapes Limited, following the Delegated Decision by the Cabinet 
Member for Corporate Resources to enter into a twelve month lease. 
 
In relation to staffing the 23 permanent employees who worked for Continental 
Landscapes Limited to which TUPE Regulations applied all successfully transferred 
into Council employment for the 1st February 2012 service commencement date. 
These employees have all been through the usual training and induction processes 

Page 12



and are working a flexible ‘annualised hours’ approach as part of their Council 
Terms and Conditions of employment.    
 
3.2 Policy Processes and Performance Workstream 
 
A Project Initiation Document (PID) and Risk Register have been produced for this 
Workstream and will be updated on a regular basis. 
 
The ‘Create Excellent Business Processes’ strand is progressing well and business 
analysis is currently being undertaken to identify and establish current business 
processes within all Services Areas under Parks and Countryside including all 
grounds maintenance functions, playground facilities, sports, crematorium and 
cemeteries, ranger service, nature conservation and biodiversity. Findings, and 
potential recommendations, will be presented to working groups of stakeholders with 
a final report in April 2012 to the Parks Project Board. 
  
ICT processes are being examined and recommendations will be presented in a 
report to the Parks Project Board. 
 
An initial meeting to scope the 10 year Strategic Plan and Policy Framework has 
occurred but progress has been delayed whilst the existing business processes are 
mapped and staff, Union and Friends representatives are aligned to this important 
strand of work. It is anticipated the Strategic Plan will take at least an additional 9 
months with a completion date of December 2013. 
  
An exercise is underway to identify current budgets and realign them to the new 
modernised service in order to assess performance and value for money.  
  
Resource have been assigned to develop a strategy in relation to benefits 
realisation, the performance management framework and establishing value for 
money for the new Parks and Countryside Service. 
 
3.3 Human Resources Workstream 
 
A draft management structure for the service has been prepared for consultation 
with trade unions and staff and implementation planned for May/June 2012. 
 
Regular meetings have been held with Trade Union representatives on new working 
practices including annualised hours, cover for Friday afternoons and flexible 
working across locations.  Staff consultation is being carried out and it is planned to 
implement the proposals as a pilot from April this year. 
 
Work has started on a Training and Development plan with a skills gap analysis to 
be completed by June this year. 
 
3.4 Assets Workstream 
 
A review has been completed of existing plant and equipment and a programme  of 
replacement drawn up for consideration by Cabinet.  Much of the plant and 
equipment is out of date and in poor condition.  Urgent replacement is required for 
equipment to ensure compliance with requirements for Hand, Arm Vibration 

Page 13



regulations.  Other equipment is now requiring high levels of maintenance and is 
beyond economic repair.  The total estimated value of replacement is in the region of 
£2.5m.   
 
A separate assessment is being undertaken of vehicle requirements and a review of 
depot requirements has started with a condition survey. A needs assessment is now 
being carried out which will be completed in May/June and which will have a further 
capital requirement. 
 
The first working group has been set up for the “Develop and Implement Tree 
Management Plan” workstream.  Work is in progress reviewing the existing tree 
management procedures and assessing the National Tree Safety Group’s new 
guidance on Trees and Public Safety in the UK December 2011 and advice is being 
sort from best practice authorities. 
 
3.5 Communication and Engagement Workstream 
 
A Parks and Countryside Communication and Engagement Plan has been 
developed which covers engagement and communication with the following: 
 

• Service users 
As it is important that we understand who is actually using our parks and what 
they want from the service. We have done some desk research using 
feedback that we already have from regular park users and other recent 
consultations that have taken place and designed a survey to help develop a 
long term plan for the Parks and Countryside service.  We asked staff, local 
residents and visitors to tell us what they like about them and if they could 
change anything what would it be.  The survey was available on line and 
paper copies, postcards and posters were available in Parks, One Stop Shop, 
Libraries, Childrens Centres and Leisure Centres.  The consultation took 
place from 25th January until 12th March and approximately 1000 responses 
have been received, the findings will be compiled into a report and will be 
used to inform the 10-year plan for Wirral's parks, beaches and open spaces. 
We will be repeating this during the Summer Months.  In addition we will be 
consulting with other equality groups. 
 

• Employees 
There have been regular meetings with Trade Union representatives to 
discuss working practices and the implementation of the Parks and 
Countryside improvement programme.  All staff were invited to participate in 
working groups established to discuss specific areas of improvement. 
 

• Media and other stake holders  
Information has been shared with Parks Steering Group and further 
consultations meetings will be arranged with stakeholders. The February 
round of Area Forums included promotion of the survey. 

 
4.0 DELIVERY PLAN PROGRESS 
 
4.1 Progress against the Delivery Plan approved by the Cabinet in November 2011 

is set out in the Appendix to this report. 

Page 14



 
4.2 Each of the tasks in the Plan has been assigned a ‘RAG’ status as follows: 
 

• GREEN – Task on target for completion within project timescale 
• AMBER – Some non-critical milestones have slipped but Task still on target 

for completion within project timescale 
• RED – Critical milestones have slipped and Task will no longer be completed 

within project timescale 
 

In the Plan there are 35 Tasks as follows: 5 Complete, 21 Green, 8 Amber and 
1 Red. 

 
4.3 Overall, good progress is being made in the delivery of the Plan at this stage, 

however there are a number of Amber Tasks where resource pressures have 
been identified and mitigating management action is being taken.  There is one 
Task classed as Red relating to the development of a new Ten Year Strategic 
Plan as this work is being reprogrammed for completion after the conclusion of 
the Modernisation Project in Spring 2013. 

 
5.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

5.1 A register of key risks and mitigating actions under each Workstream has been 
developed and will be monitored at future Project Board meetings. 

 
6.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

6.1 At a strategic level the alternative option to the Council modernising and 
delivering the Parks & Countryside Service directly (in house) would have been 
to outsource the Service as suggested by the Parks & Countryside Service 
Procurement Exercise (PACSPE). Cabinet considered a detailed report before 
making their decision to not award an external contract and keep the service ‘in 
house’ on 3rd November 2011. 

 
7.0 CONSULTATION  

7.1 Consultation and Engagement is one of the four key Workstreams and is 
covered in detail under section 3.5 of this report. 

 
8.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

8.1 An important objective of the Modernised Service will be to facilitate the 
development of relationships with the community and voluntary sector. 

 
9.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

9.1 Financial Implications 
 

9.1.1  It is proposed that the Policy, Processes and Performance Workstream will 
carry out a review of Parks & Countryside Services budgets and realign them to 
the new service/ performance monitoring areas under the new Modernised 
Service.  

 
 
 

Page 15



9.2 Human Resource Implications 
 

9.2.1   A progress update summarising the HR implications of the project is described 
in section 3.3 of this report.  

 
9.3 Asset Implications 
 

9.3.1   A progress update summarising the Asset implications of the project is 
described in section 3.4 of this report. 

 
10.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 Legal Services are a key discipline represented on the Project Board. 
 

11.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 An Equality Impact Assessment is being undertaken for the Parks 
Modernisation project and will be reported to Cabinet in April 2012. 

 
12.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  
 

12.1 Environmental Sustainability is an important objective for the Modernised 
Service. 

 
13.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

13.1 Community safety in parks is an important objective for the Modernised 
Service. 

 
14.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

14.1 Members are requested to note the progress of the Parks Modernisation 
Project outlined in this report. 
 

15.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

15.1 The purpose of this report to keep Members appraised of the progress of this 
important corporate project to modernise the Parks & Countryside Service. 

 
 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Mark Smith 
  Deputy Director 
  telephone:  (0151) 606 2103 
  email:   marksmith@wirral.gov.uk 
 
APPENDICES 

Parks Modernisation Project Delivery Plan. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

None. 
 

Page 16



 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

 

Council Meeting  Date 

Cabinet – PACSPE Contract Award 

 

Sustainable Communities O&S Committee – 

PACSPE Contract Award Call in 

 

Cabinet – PACSPE Contract Award (following Call 

in) 

 

Cabinet – Parks & Countryside Services 

Modernisation Project – Integration of Highway 

Services and Outline Delivery Plan 

 

Cabinet – Parks & Countryside Services 

Modernisation Project – Update 

 

Cabinet – Parks & Countryside Services 

Modernisation Project – Purchase of Second-hand 

Vehicles and Equipment 

 

22 September 2011 

 

20 October 2011 

 

 

3 November 2011 

 

 

24 November 2011 

 

 

 

12 January 2012 

 

 

15 March 2012 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 17



 

 
PARKS & COUNTRYSIDE SERVICES MODERNISATION PROJECT – DELIVERY PLAN (DECEMBER 2011 TO MARCH 2013) 
 
A. POLICY, PROCESSES AND PERFORMANCE WORKSTREAM 
 

 
Key Outcome 

 

 
Task 

 
Duration 

 
Progress 

 
RAG 
Status 

• Establish existing ‘as is’ business 
processes 

 
 

Dec 11 – April 12 Progressing well in all service 
areas – on target for 
completion by end of April 

G 

• Review and redesign business 
processes 

 

Jan 12 – June 12 Work in progress but may run 
into July/August 

A 

• Procure necessary ICT 
 

Jun 12 – Dec 12 In future G 

• Provide necessary training and 
development 

 

Nov 12 – Feb 13 In future G 

Create Excellent Business 
Processes 

• Implement ‘to be’ business 
processes 

 

Nov 12 – Feb 13 In future G 

• Review existing policies 
 
 

Dec 11 – Mar 12 Work is in progress but delayed 
due to loss of staff resource 

A 

• Develop new Ten Year Strategic 
Plan and Policy Framework 

 

Jan 12 – June 12 Work is being reprogrammed 
for completion by end 
December 13 and additional 
resource support required 

R 

Establish Ten Year 
Strategic Plan and Policy 
Framework 

• Implement Annual Business Plan 
 
 

Feb 13 onwards In future G 

P
age 18



 

• Baseline existing performance 
standards 

 

Dec 11 – June 12 Identification of service KPIs in 
progress.  Work may run into 
July/August 

A 

• Establish Partnership 
Performance Advisory Board 
(PPAB) 

 

Jun 12 – July 12 In future G 

• Agree and implement new 
performance standards (KPIs, 
CPIs) 

 

July 12 – Nov 12 In future G 

Establish New 
Performance Standards 
and Monitoring Regime 

• Review and realign budgets to 
service/ performance areas 

 

Apr 12 – Nov 12 Work in progress G 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 19



 

B. HUMAN RESOURCES WORKSTREAM 
 

 
Key Outcome 

 

 
Task 

 
Duration 

 
Progress 

 
RAG 
Status 

• Review and redesign 
management structure 

 
 

Dec 11 – Feb 12 Review/redesign exercise now 
complete and draft out to 
consultation 

Complete Establish New 
Management Structure 

• Agree and implement revised 
management structure 

 

Jan 12 – Jun 12 Draft out to consultation G 

• Review existing operational 
structure including Terms and 
Conditions 

 

Dec 11 – Jun 12 Work in progress G Establish New Operational 
Structure 

• Agree and implement revised 
operational structure 

 
 

Jun 12 – Nov 12 In future G 

• Undertake Skills Gap Analysis 
 
 
 

Dec 11 – Jun 12 Not yet commenced.  Work 
may run into July/August.  
Additional resource support 
required 

A 

• Develop Training and 
Development Plan including 
Competency Framework 

 

Apr 12 – Oct 12 In future G 

Develop and Implement 
Training & Development 
Plan 

• Implement Training and 
Development Plan 

 
 

Nov 12 – Feb 13 In future G 

P
age 20



 

 
C. ASSETS WORKSTREAM 
 

 
Key Outcome 

 

 
Task 

 
Duration 

 
Progress 

 
RAG Status 

• Review existing Plant and Equipment Dec 11 – Feb 12 - Complete 
• Identify Plant and Equipment 

requirements 
 

Dec 11 – May 12 - Complete 

• Develop and agree funding and 
procurement strategy 

 

May 12 – Jun 12 In progress – 
report to Cabinet 
in April 

G 

Develop and Implement Plan & 
Equipment Plan 

• Implement Plant and Equipment 
Plan 

June 12 – Dec 12 In future G 

• Review existing Buildings and 
Depots 

 

Dec 11 – Feb 12 Work is in 
progress but 
delayed 

A 

• Identify Building and Depot 
requirements 

 

Dec 12 – May 12 Work programme 
delayed 

A 

• Develop and agree investment 
strategy 

 

May 12 – Jun 12 Work programme 
delayed 

A 

Develop and Implement 
Buildings and Depots Plan 

• Implement Buildings and Depots 
Plan 

 

Jun 12 – Dec 12 In future G 

• Review and develop tree 
management procedures 

 

Jan 12 – Jun 12 Work in progress G Develop and Implement Tree 
Management Plan 

• Agree and implement new Tree 
Management Plan 

 
 

Jun 12 – Feb 13 In future G 

P
age 21



 

D. COMMUNICATIONS AND ENGAGEMENT WORKSTREAM 
 

 
Key Outcome 

 

 
Task 

 
Duration 

 
Progress 

 
RAG Status 

Develop and Implement 
Communications & Engagement 
Plan 

• Develop and implement 
Communications and Engagement 
Plan 

 

Dec 11 – Feb 13 Plan 
developed and 
due for sign-off 
by Project 
Board.  Some 
consultation 
actions 
completed 

A 

• Develop and agree new survey format 
 
 

Dec 11 – Jan 12 - Complete Develop and Implement Regular 
Public Surveys 

• Implement new Public Surveys 
 
 

Jan 12 – Jun 12 - Complete 

• Develop and agree Branding 
Guidelines 

 
 

Jan 12 – Jun 12 In progress G 

• Develop and agree Marketing Strategy 
 
 

Jan 12 – Jun 12 Outstanding G 

Develop and Implement Branding 
and Marketing Plan 

• Implement Branding and Marketing 
Plan 

 
 

Nov 12 – Feb 13 In future G 

 
 
 

P
age 22



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

28 MARCH 2012 

SUBJECT: PROVIDE & MAINTAIN HIGH QUALITY 

VALUE FOR MONEY LEISURE & CULTURE 

FACILITIES FOR WIRRAL RESIDENTS  - 

UPDATE REPORT 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF TECHNICAL SERVICES 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

COUNCILLOR LESLEY RENNIE 

CULTURE, TOURISM AND LEISURE 

KEY DECISION?  NO  
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report updates Members on the current position of the Technical Services 
Delivery Plan that supports the Corporate Goal: ‘Provide and maintain high quality, 
value for money leisure and cultural facilities for Wirral Residents’ for which the key 
activity within the Departmental Plan is to ‘Promote the Council’s leisure facilities to 
encourage greater take-up of services’. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1   In 2009 Cabinet approved a general marketing plan which included specific support 
for the promotion of the Council’s Leisure centres.   A marketing specialist from the 
Corporate Marketing Team was assigned to work full time on the development and 
implementation of a ‘Sport and Recreation’ Marketing Strategy.  

  
The final strategy included projects and developments in four key areas;- 

  
• The promotion and development of the Invigor8 product.  
• The promotion of a targeted piece of work in partnership with the Amateur 

Swimming Association (ASA) to increase adult participation.  
• Building on the euphoria generated by the London 2012 Olympic Games.  
• Promotion and development of Community Sports initiatives. 

  
2.2 Promotion and development of the Invigor8 product 
  
 The Invigor8 product was launched in 2005 with the aim of increasing adult 

participation by offering a package of facilities that customers could use for a one off 
monthly fee.  This included swimming, use of the fitness suite, squash courts and all 
sports courses were just some of the facilities available to customers during public 
opening hours. There are presently seven and a half thousand members realising 
about £150,000 per month to the Council and even in times of recession, this figure is 
growing. Planned fitness suite refurbishments at West Kirby Concourse and the Oval 
Leisure Centre and equipment renewals at Europa Pools, Leasowe Leisure and West 

Agenda Item 5

Page 23



Kirby Centres should ensure that this figure continues to grow.  An investment of 
£320,000 has now been made in renewing fitness equipment which is funded from the 
improved income levels and obviously will further enhance the “offer” to Wirral 
residents. 

  
2.3   Promotion of adult participation in partnership with the ASA  
  
 In 2010 we were approached by the ASA to work in partnership with them on a 

targeted piece of promotional work, with the aim of increasing opportunities for 
customers to participate in a wide range of aquatic activities. The promotion plan was 
based on the market segmentation data in and around Leisure Centres (information 
on the age, gender, status of people in an area, plus assumptions on the likelihood to 
participate or otherwise in swimming activities) and involved reviewing swimming pool 
opening times, the promotion of specific aqua classes, promotion of the 60 plus 
swimming awareness campaign and promotion of the ‘Big Splash’ project. 

  
2.4   Building on the euphoria of the London 2012 Olympic Games 
  
 With the upcoming arrival of the London 2012 Olympic Games, Sport and Recreation 

are looking to build on euphoria of the Games and engage with current and potentially 
new customers, by offering a full range of sports and physical activity programmes, 
these include:- 

 
• Countdown activities – promotion of those events, games and organised activities 

linked to the Games in the weeks leading up to start of the Games. 
 

• The Olympic Torch Relay in Birkenhead Park  – the Torch will be coming to the 
Wirral on 1st June 2012 and will be working its way from the Wallasey Tunnel, to 
Birkenhead Park and then through Birkenhead to the Woodside Ferry Terminal. 
There will be a host of targeted activity organised by Schools and the Community 
within the Park celebrating everything that good about inter school competition and 
links to community clubs and organisations. 

 
• Leisure Centre Legacy Exercise – targeted sports courses and Clubs within 

Leisure Centres to promote our own programmes and activities at the time of the 
Games. 

  
2.5  Sports Development / Community Development  
  
 The Sport Development Unit delivers a number of projects that encourages individuals 

and community groups to take up sport and benefit from all sport has to offer, 
including healthier lifestyles, safer communities, improved opportunities for 
employment and community cohesion. 

  
 With external funding, the Unit works with targeted and vulnerable groups of all ages 

particularly in areas of deprivation (although not exclusively) to develop and deliver a 
range of activities from women’s only cycling groups, to running, boxercise, Zumba 
classes and football. Activities are delivered in both leisure centres and community 
settings 

  
 2.6  Sport England commissioned MORI to conduct a nation wide biannual survey, to 

measure the number of adults participating in at least 3 x 30 minutes of physical 

Page 24



activity every week. This was in part to contribute to the Governments aim of 
increasing adult participation by 1% year on year. This in turn was in response to 
London being awarded the London 2012 Olympic Games back in 2005 and Lord 
Coe’s promise to inspire more young people to play more sport.  

  
 In 2005/6 Wirral’s NI8 survey results indicated that 19.5% of the adult population were 

taking part in at least 3 x 30 minutes of physical activity per week. In 2009/11 the 
percentage was 25.5%, an increase of 6% in 5 years with Wirral being one of the very 
few Local Authorities achieving the Governments target and in terms of overall NI8 
performance, being in the top 10% of Local Authorities in the country.  

 
2.7 Access to Leisure Centres for Vulnerable Groups 
 
 A report was considered by the Scrutiny Committee in September 2011 on the 

provision made to increase access to Leisure Centres by vulnerable groups.  This 
includes the Wirral Passport scheme and Lifestyles Health Referral Scheme and a 
targeted physical activity programme funded by the PCT.  A more detailed update will 
be provided in June including recommendations for improvements to the Passport 
Scheme. 

 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 Lack of investments in the fabric and equipment provided in Leisure Centres could 
result in a reduction in income. 

 
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options were considered in the preparation of this report. 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 During 2011/ 2012 two specific customer consultations were undertaken to find out 
what was working well and what was not, both in terms of the provision of activities on 
offer at our leisure centres and the opinions of our users/ members. 

 
Overall feedback was rated, across the board, as predominantly Excellent/ Good.  
Highlights include:  

 
• 79% said that the choice of classes/activities was ‘average’ or better (58% ‘good’ 

or ‘very good’) 
 
• 78% rated the availability of information average or better  
 

5.2 In summing up and in terms of majority opinion, the reoccurring theme in terms of 
comments related to leisure centre staff with over 88% of respondents stating 
helpfulness and friendliness of staff was an influencing factor to repeat visits. 

 
5.3 A second, more subject specific, consultation was carried out in August/ September.  

This was based on the recreational habits of our centre users with the aim being to 
find out preferred swim/ fitness suite times and their motivations. 

 

Page 25



5.4 With centre usage in mind, almost 75% of respondents identified swimming as the 
most common activity undertaken. Of this audience over half use the pool more than 
once a month. (22% more than once a week). 

 
5.5 With fitness suite usage in mind, 39% used the facility at least once a month.  Of this 

audience both early mornings and late evenings is the preferred time of day for 
participation. 

 
5.6 The conclusion was that the fitness suites would be well used if it opened from 7.00 – 

9.00am and that swimming pools would be well used if it opened from 7.00 – 9.00am. 
This is supported by the fact that 49% of respondents said that the current opening 
hours stopped them from swimming more.  

 
5.7 Only 10% of respondents said that cost was an issue that stopped them from 

swimming. This suggests that the pricing of swimming is acceptable for the vast 
majority of customers. 

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 Most sports clubs are run by volunteers and the Sports Development Team actively 
encourages their involvement and development. 

 
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 Members are requested to note the progress in achieving the Corporate Goal outlined 
in this report. 

 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 The purpose of this report is to keep Members appraised of the progress in achieving 
this important Corporate Goal. 

 
 

Page 26



REPORT AUTHOR: Jim Lester 
  Head of Cultural Services 
  telephone:  (0151) 606 2308 
  email:  jimlester@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
APPENDICES 

None 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

None 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

 

None 

 

 

 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

28 MARCH 2012 

SUBJECT: LIBRARIES STRATEGY 

WARD/S AFFECTED ALL 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER: 

COUNCILLOR LESLEY RENNIE 

KEY DECISION: NO 

 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report sets out the broad responses from the recent Library Strategy 
“Wirral Libraries, A New Chapter” consultation and highlights how they will be 
taken into account in the strategy. 

2. BACKGROUND ISSUES 

2.1 Cabinet on 8 December 2011 (minute 219) agreed the draft Library Strategy. 
This Committee received the draft Library Strategy on 30 January 2012 
(minute 68) and resolved to reconsider the strategy after completion of the 
consultation process and when the views of all libraries and user groups had 
been taken into account. 

2.2. This report provides preliminary feedback on the recent library strategy 
consultation for Wirral Library Service. 

2.3. The total number of surveys this preliminary review is based on is 1,465 of 
which 423 were paper surveys. The total number of surveys received 
continues to increase. 

2.4. Feedback was received from road shows at each library as well as library 
Friends organisations, user groups, and reading groups.  The general public 
were consulted from the outset.  The process has been a valuable one and 
our communities have come forward and demonstrated that they value their 
library service but also appreciate that we need to operate within tighter 
financial constraints. 

2.5. In designing and running the consultation process, officers and Members 
sought to listen to the thoughts, views and experiences of local people and 
organisations on the new strategy and proposed changes to opening hours. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 29



2.6. The libraries strategy consultation ran from 26 January until 29 February 
2012.  The consultation was designed to canvas public and partner views on 
the library strategy.  This was done via: 

• Face to face discussion conducted by library staff in all Wirral libraries. 
• Information at focus groups. 
• Online questionnaire placed on the Council website. 
• Promotion of the online survey through social media. 
• Direct email contact with 1,900 recent customers of the library service who 

had provided their email addresses. 
• In-house survey of customers in the newly merged sites (Eastham & 

Heswall) to see what they thought of the new opening hours. 
• February Area Forums 

 
2.7. To assist this process: 

• Hard copies of the consultation documents were made available at all 
libraries and many other areas within the local community to ensure that 
they were available to both library users and non-users. To assist 
Members a copy is attached as Appendix 1 of this report. 

• All the individuals, groups and organisations on the corporate marketing 
database (over 4,800 e-mail addresses) were notified of the consultation. 

• Media releases were sent to the local media. 
• Friends and user group members were invited to a special 

strategy/opening hour consultation evening during which the library 
management team were on hand to answer any questions and discuss 
some of the issues facing the library service. 

 

 KEY OUTCOMES OF THE CONSULTATION PROCESS 

2.8. These are shown below based on the following preliminary numbers: 

• 385 people engaged in the face to face library survey sessions. 
• 30 people attended the library consultation evening. 
• 1,465 consultation forms were completed and returned by 29 February 

2012. 
 

2.9 The detailed list of responses on the draft strategy indicates three broad areas 
of comment: 

• Respondents are overwhelmingly supportive of the value of a written 
strategy for the library service. 

• Respondents agreed that the strategy fits Wirral’s needs. 
• Respondents are in favour of the initiative to bring together library and One 

Stop Shop provision. 
 

2.10 To assist Members a preliminary breakdown of responses for each question is 
shown at Appendix 2 based on those returns received by 29 February 2012. 

 
 OPENING HOURS 

2.11 The most significant response to the consultation in terms of public comment 
relates to proposed changes in opening hours although it must be made clear 
that responses varied from location to location.  Page 30



2.12 The main feature in the draft proposal to redistribute hours was a plan to 
extend the opening of all Wirral libraries to six days a week.  To help facilitate 
this there would be an alteration of evening opening hours across community 
libraries so that they would close at 5 p.m.  This was supported by the evening 
opening of the four central library sites at Bebington, Birkenhead, Wallasey 
and West Kirby.  The proposal was based on analysis of declining evening 
usage patterns over the past four years and it would be more beneficial to 
provide a Wednesday daytime opening service.  

2.13 It was proposed to offer a more strategic cost-effective approach to service 
delivery with 24/7 access to the library via the recently introduced and 
increasingly popular e-book service and four central libraries offering three 
late night opening times per week. 

2.14 The libraries become significantly quieter in the evening and this trend is 
replicated in all areas of the borough with every library showing a significant 
drop in book borrowing and user count from 5 p.m. onwards. 

2.15 From analysis of written responses on the consultation forms there is great 
strength of feeling as regards opening hour changes in general.  More than 
half of the respondents agreed that only the four main libraries should 
maintain evening opening.  There was a clear contradiction as a large number 
of written comments on the forms also called for the maintenance of locally 
driven late evening opening.  

2.16 In addition, the majority of people disagreed with evening closure in the 
in-house library opening hour surveys and during the Friends Consultation 
Evening Event.  People felt strongly that some of the non-central libraries 
should be open in the evenings or ‘for at least one evening a week’ although 
there was no clear consensus as to which ones. 

2.17 The issue here is that more people have asked for Libraries to retain an 
evening opening than actually use them.  The view is that respondents 
although not using the evening opening themselves felt it should be there for 
someone else to use.   

 FUTURE OPTIONS 

2.18 In order to address the issues a number of options present themselves for 
further consideration.  These are: 

(a) Library opening hours remain as now, with sites closed on Wednesday and 
retain evening opening.  

(b) Continue with the proposed opening hours, opening on a Wednesday and 
restricting evening openings to the four main sites. 
 

(c) Change the proposed core opening hours of the non-central libraries to a later 
opening and closing time (e.g. moving from 9-5 to 10-6). 
 

(d) Review ability to offer more flexible opening hours for each Community 
Library to suit the needs of local people and reflect customer demand while 
retaining the core opening times at the four central libraries.  

 

Page 31



2.19 Each of these options has advantages and disadvantages and each will be 
carefully considered and a subsequent report to Cabinet will be submitted with 
a proposed route forward.  
 

2.20 Particular emphasis will be given to explaining the issues that surround the 
more flexible opening hour option based on local need which was favoured by 
many respondents.  This was also one of the main suggestions for libraries 
from the Department for Culture Media & Sport (DCMS) Policy Statement 
‘The Modernisation Review of Public Libraries’ (March 2010) and a number of 
other library authorities are known to be looking at this as it fits with the 
Government localism agenda by serving each community individually and 
reflecting the needs of those living, working and studying in the area.  It would 
need to acknowledge resource limitations and this may require innovative 
ways in which to help with evening opening without increasing costs, such as 
supporting staff presence with volunteers.  
 

2.21 This more individual option is very time consuming to manage operationally 
as well as the potential need to attract suitable and sufficient assistance to 
avoid offering an ad hoc, inefficient service which would be confusing for the 
public with no clear set of opening hours.  It would require detailed analysis of 
need and demand in each particular site as well as the local communities’ 
willingness to contribute to some degree to the delivery of their local library 
service in the evening.  
 

2.22 This was a particularly popular option with library friends, user and reading 
groups who currently meet in their local community libraries after five o’clock.  
A major concern on evening closure developed because members of these 
groups felt that they would no longer be able to continue if the strategy 
proposal went ahead.  If access to the library building could be facilitated 
another way, which it is suggested could be, then some of these objections 
will be answered.  
 

 NEXT STEPS 

2.23 The Strategy will be reviewed in the light of these consultation outcomes. As 
part of this I intend to highlight that opening hours will be reviewed in the light 
of consultation responses and suggestions and will look to produce a potential 
schedule of opening hours together with the resource implications and 
options.  The Library and One Stop Shop Service will undertake further 
analysis to ‘fine tune’ the proposals to ensure that users’ needs are met as 
closely as possible.  

3.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

3.1 If the Authority does not have a Libraries Strategy then it is likely that while 
day to day business can continue the medium to long term development will 
not occur in a planned and efficient way.  This is especially so given the 
challenges facing libraries in technological and human resource terms as well 
as locally in the ongoing development of the community role and the linkage 
to One Stop Shops and Customer Services in general.  

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

4.1 The other options detailed remain open for consideration. 

 Page 32



5.0 CONSULTATION 

5.1 Details of the consultation are given in this report. 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising directly from the approval of this strategy but these 
groups will form part of ongoing development and review of the strategy. 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS; FINANCIAL, IT, STAFFING & ASSETS 

7.1 Financial – The development of an increasingly efficient and responsive 
Library service and the linked development with One Stop Shops is being 
done within the financial constraints that the Council faces and offers potential 
savings in terms of buildings and staff  by aligning these complementary 
services.  

7.2 IT – There are none arising directly from this report.  

7.3 Staffing – Any changes to service have a consequential impact on staffing.  

7.4 Assets – Each Library development will assist Asset Management to 
maximise the effective use of facilities whilst not affecting service standards 
and offer an opportunity for savings with integrated flexible spaces that are 
modern and maximise usage. 

8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 There are none arising directly from the approval of this strategy.  

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 The Library Strategy seeks to offer access to quality local services for the 
benefit of all users. A commitment to equality and diversity is integral to 
delivering excellent services responsive to all users including those who may 
not be current users. The recognition that different users have different 
physical and service needs informs access and service plans. 

9.2 Customer insight information will enable identification of customers who are 
vulnerable or hard to reach and working collaboratively will help to meet and 
support these groups in a cost effective manner.  

9.3 The link to the Equality Impact Assessment for Libraries is shown below; 

 http://www.wirral.gov.uk/my-services/community-and-living/equality-diversity-
cohesion/equality-impact-assessments/eias-2010/finance 

10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 

10.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 

11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 

12.0 RECOMMENDATION 

12.1 That Members note the report. 

 
Page 33



13. REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

13.1 The strategy has been formulated to provide a base for the many changes 
and challenges the Library service is facing both locally and nationally. This 
consultation has highlighted a number of issues to take account of and this 
report advises members of those matters and potential ways forward which 
will be referred to Cabinet for consideration. 

 

FNCE/72/12 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: Malcolm Flanagan 

Head of Revenues Benefits & Customer Services 
Telephone: (0151 666 3260) 
e-mail: malcolmflanagan@wirral.gov.uk 

 

APPENDIX 

Consultation questionnaire 

Overview of consultation findings 

REFERENCE MATERIAL 

None attached 

SUBJECT HISTORY (last three years) 

Council Meeting Date 

Sustainable Communities 30 January 2012 

Cabinet   8 December 2011 

Cabinet 23 June 2011 

Cabinet   9 December 2010 

 

Page 34



Tell us what you want
from your libraries
We’re working on a long term vision for Wirral’s libraries. The draft libraries
strategy sets out how the service will be delivered in future. We’d like to know what
you think of the strategy and if there is anything else that you would like to see in
your local library.

Please read the strategy on the Council’s website at www.wirral.gov.uk/librarystrategy
before completing the following questionnaire. The results of the questionnaire will help 
us to make sure libraries are meeting the needs of local people.

This survey can also be completed online at www.wirral.gov.uk/librarystrategy

The closing date is Wednesday 29th February 2012.

1. The library strategy defines our libraries as: “A Wirral library is a friendly,
accessible place that provides a safe, trusted and welcoming resource aimed at 
meeting the needs of the local community. Its focus is on providing information, 
knowledge and reading for self improvement and enjoyment.”

Do you agree with this definition of a library?

Strongly Agree Agree No Opinion Disagree Strongly Disagree

2. At the heart of the library changes will be the link between libraries and One Stop
Shops which will make both services available at all sites and will make more 
efficient use of buildings and staff.

Do you agree with this initiative?

Strongly Agree Agree No Opinion Disagree Strongly Disagree

You can return your
completed survey to any
Wirral library or One Stop
Shop or by post to:
Libraries Survey, 
PO Box 2, Cleveland
Street, Birkenhead
Wirral, CH41 6BU

Are there any other comments you would like to make?

Are there any other comments you would like to make?

Page 35



3. All libraries will offer a basic One Stop Shop service as well as signposting for 
Council and a range of partner organisation services. Some libraries already 
share a building with a One Stop Shop which can offer an enhanced service and 
deal with more complex enquiries. This enhanced service will be introduced to 
other libraries where the need is identified. Do you agree with this proposal?

Strongly Agree Agree No Opinion Disagree Strongly Disagree

4. We propose that the library service will have the following clearly defined functions:
Reading for pleasure; Information for study, research, self improvement and 
knowledge; The development of individual literacy; A source of local community 
information; A source of public service information.

Do you agree with this proposals?

Strongly Agree Agree No Opinion Disagree Strongly Disagree

5. Is there anything not included in these proposals that you would like to see in 
your library?

6. We propose that only the four main libraries at West Kirby, Wallasey, Birkenhead
and Bebington will maintain evening openings to allow for Wednesday openings
across all libraries. Do you agree with this proposal?

Strongly Agree Agree No Opinion Disagree Strongly Disagree

Are there any other comments you would like to make?

Are there any other comments you would like to make?

Are there any other comments you would like to make?

Page 36



7. Bearing in mind that only the four central libraries (Birkenhead Central, Wallasey
Central, West Kirby and Bebington Central) will be open in the evenings, and 
that there are staffing and accommodation costs to keeping a library open, how 
many evenings do you think these libraries should be open?

1 2 3 4 5

8. All library buildings will provide the following core facilities:

In addition, the Central Libraries will provide the following:

Do you agree with these proposals?

Strongly Agree Agree No Opinion Disagree Strongly Disagree

9. Is there anything not included in these lists that you would like to see in your library?

Are there any other comments you would like to make?

• A wide variety of books
• Internet access
• Free access to key websites such as

ancestry.co.uk, Encyclopaedia Britannica
online, knowuk.com and newsuk.co.uk

• Wifi provision

• Photocopying and faxing service
• Newspapers and magazines
• A library service for children and 

young people
• Activities and events
• Provision for learning

• Reference facilities
• Audio visual library
• Exhibition space

• Meeting space
• Study area
• Café area

Are there any other comments you would like to make?

Page 37



10. Do you agree that a café area would be a positive addition to libraries where 
space allows?

Strongly Agree Agree No Opinion Disagree Strongly Disagree

11. We are planning to introduce self service machines (known as RFID) for checking
books in and out and making library payments. This will free up staff to deal with 
more complex enquiries and manage activities, displays and promotions.

Do you agree with this proposal?

Strongly Agree Agree No Opinion Disagree Strongly Disagree

12. In section 5.5 of the library strategy we have outlined what we plan to do to 
promote reading for pleasure. Do you agree with this proposal?

Strongly Agree Agree No Opinion Disagree Strongly Disagree

13. In section 5.6 of the library strategy we have outlined what we plan to do to make 
a library a place to visit for information for study, research, self improvement 
and knowledge.

Do you agree with this proposal?

Strongly Agree Agree No Opinion Disagree Strongly Disagree

Are there any other comments you would like to make?

Are there any other comments you would like to make?

Are there any other comments you would like to make?

Are there any other comments you would like to make?

Page 38



14. In section 5.8 of the library strategy we have outlined what we plan to do to make 
a library a source of local community information.

Do you agree with this proposal?

Strongly Agree Agree No Opinion Disagree Strongly Disagree

15. In section 5.9 of the library strategy we have outlined what we plan to do to make 
a library a source of public service information.

Do you agree with this proposal?

Strongly Agree Agree No Opinion Disagree Strongly Disagree

16. In section 6.2 of the library strategy we have outlined what we plan to do to
contribute to the Council’s key objective to support families.

Do you agree with this proposal?

Strongly Agree Agree No Opinion Disagree Strongly Disagree

17. In section 6.3 of the library strategy we have outlined what we plan to do to
contribute to the Council’s key objective to support vulnerable adults.

Do you agree with this proposal?

Strongly Agree Agree No Opinion Disagree Strongly Disagree

Are there any other comments you would like to make?

Are there any other comments you would like to make?

Are there any other comments you would like to make?

Are there any other comments you would like to make?

Page 39



18. In section 6.4 of the library strategy we have outlined what we plan to do to
contribute to the Council’s key objective to develop cohesive neighbourhoods.

Do you agree with this proposal?

Strongly Agree Agree No Opinion Disagree Strongly Disagree

19. In section 6.5 of the library strategy we have outlined what we plan to do to
contribute to the Council’s key objective to increase employment in Wirral.

Do you agree with this proposal?

Strongly Agree Agree No Opinion Disagree Strongly Disagree

20. In section 6.6 of the library strategy we have outlined what we plan to do to 
increase the involvement of the independent, voluntary, community and faith 
sectors in Council service delivery and transfer more power to neighbourhoods.

Do you agree with this proposal?

Strongly Agree Agree No Opinion Disagree Strongly Disagree

21. Do you agree that this strategy fits Wirral’s needs?

Strongly Agree Agree No Opinion Disagree Strongly Disagree

Are there any other comments you would like to make?

Are there any other comments you would like to make?

Are there any other comments you would like to make?

Are there any other comments you would like to make?

Page 40



22. If you are interested in being updated about our progress against this strategy, or 
in becoming more involved in the new service, please tick below and provide your 
contact details.

I would like to receive email updates of your progress against the library strategy
I would like to receive email updates about other Council services
I am interested in becoming involved in the library user group
I am interested in working as a volunteer in the new library service
I work for an organisation that I feel can contribute to the library service

23. Please provide your name and email address. Wirral Council will not disclose 
your information to any unauthorised third party.

24. If you don't have an email address please provide your postal address:

25. If you work for an organisation that you feel can contribute to the library service
please tell us the name of your organisation and how you feel it could help:

Name:

Email address:

Address:

Postcode:

About you

26. Are you:

Male Female Transgender Prefer not to say

We want to ensure that all Wirral residents can access all of our services, and to ensure
you all receive an appropriate and relevant service dependent upon your needs. We
need your help in order for us to do that.

We are asking you to provide us with vital personal information, which will be anonymous
and cannot be attached to your name or address. We need this information to build a
picture of who uses our services. This will also help us to identify which local communities
are not accessing our services and why.

Page 41



29. Please tick the box which best describes your ethnicity:

30. What is your religion or belief?

Christian (inc C of E, Catholic, Protestant & all other Christian denominations)
Buddhist Hindu Jewish Muslim
Sikh Humanist Atheist Agnostic
Pagan Prefer not to say None

31. What was your age on your last birthday?

Under 16 (please go to the end of this survey) 16-24
25-44 45-64 65+ Prefer not to say

32. What is your marital status?

Married Civil Partnership Neither Prefer not to say

33. What is your sexual orientation?

Heterosexual Lesbian Gay Bisexual
Prefer not to say

34. Is your gender the same as when you were born?

Yes No Prefer not to say

White English
White other British
White Irish
Any other White background 
(please state below)
Mixed White & Black Caribbean
Mixed White & Black African
Mixed White & Asian
Any other Mixed background 
(please state below)
Asian or Asian British (Indian)
Asian or Asian British (Pakistani)

Asian or Asian British (Bangladeshi)
Asian or Asian British (Chinese)
Any other Asian background 
(please state below)
Black or Black British (Caribbean)
Black or Black British (African)
Any other Black background 
(please state below)
Arab
Gypsy, Romany or Irish Traveller
Prefer not to say

Any other ethnicity:

Thank you for taking the time to complete this survey. 
You can return your completed survey to any Wirral library or by Freepost to: 
Libraries Survey, PO Box 2, Cleveland Street, Birkenhead, Wirral, CH41 6BU

27. If you consider yourself to be disabled please tick all boxes that describe 
your disability: 

Yes No Prefer not to say

28. Please tick all boxes that describe your disability:

Physical Disability Learning Disability
Sensory impairment Prefer not to say

30JAN12JS

Page 42



 APPENDIX 2 
 
The Library Strategy defines our Libraries as; “A Wirral Library is a 
friendly accessible place that provides a safe trusted and welcoming 
resource aimed at meeting the needs of the local community. Its focus is 
on providing information, knowledge and reading for self improvement 
and enjoyment”.  Do you agree with this definition of a Library? 
 
Q1 Do you agree with the strategy’s definition of a Library? 
 
 Strongly agree 66% 
 Agree 29% 
 No opinion   2% 
 Disagree   2% 
 Strongly disagree   1% 
 
 
At the heart of the library changes will be the link between libraries and 
One Stop Shops which will make both services available at all sites and 
will make more efficient use of buildings and staff.  Do you agree with 
this initiative?  
 
Q2 Do you agree with the initiative to bring together Library and One 

Stop Shop provision? 
 
 Strongly agree 26% 
 Agree 42% 
 No opinion 13% 
 Disagree 12% 
 Strongly disagree   7% 
 
The vast majority of responses were with “agree” or “strongly agree” with 19% 
in disagreement with the proposal.  Most of the respondents commented that 
although they were broadly in agreement/disagreement with the proposal they 
had concerns.  
 
These generally can be placed in the following categories; 
 
1. Loss of Library Space/Services  
2. Losing Expertise in Both Services 
3. Change to Library Environment  
4. Privacy 
 
A number of comments also raised the issue that many people had little 
knowledge of service of a One Stop Shop and some also had a negative 
perception of One Stop Shops; 
 

Page 43



All libraries will offer a basic One Stop Shop service as well as 
signposting for Council and a range of partner organisation services. 
Some libraries already share a building with a One Stop Shop which can 
offer an enhanced service and deal with more complex enquiries. This 
enhanced service will be introduced to other libraries where the need is 
identified. Do you agree with this proposal? 
 
Q3 Do you agree with the proposal to enhanced One Stop Shop 

provision where the need is identified? 
 
 Strongly agree 25% 
 Agree 46% 
 No opinion 12% 
 Disagree  11% 
 Strongly disagree   6% 
 
The chart shows the vast majority of respondents are in agreement with the 
proposal but, as in the previous question, their comments show that their 
agreement is conditional.  
 
Many respondents commented that this question was a reiteration of Q2 
(above) and therefore gave the same answers.  
 
Therefore the issues raised are similar to the previous question and can be 
categorised the same;  
 
1. Loss of Library Space/Services  
2. Losing Expertise in Both Services 
3. Change to Library Environment 
4. Privacy 
 
 
We propose that the library service will have the following clearly 
defined functions: Reading for Pleasure; Information for Study, 
research, self improvement and knowledge; The development of 
individual literacy; A source of local community information; A source 
of public service information. Do you agree with these proposals? 
 
Q4 Do you agree with the Library Functions outlined? 
 
 Strongly agree 59% 
 Agree 35% 
 No opinion   3% 
 Disagree   2% 
 Strongly disagree   1% 
 
The vast majority of people agreed/strongly agreed with the proposed 
functions. However, many of the people responding felt Wirral Libraries 
already fulfilled these functions and also that what is already available is not 
well publicised.  Some people felt that the functions were poorly defined while 
a number of respondents pointed out functions they felt were missing from the 
list. 

Page 44



 
Q5 Is there anything not included in these proposals that you would 

like to see in your library? 
 

It became clear from the responses that most people have read this question 
as anything they would like to see in their libraries and not necessarily 
answered the question in reference to the proposal of the library services 
“clearly defined functions”.  
 
Example of support for proposed services; “Café” 
 
Also people have put forward proposals that are already in place 
demonstrating that members of the public are not fully aware of what is 
already available to them. 
 
Examples of support/requests for existing services  
(may not currently be available in all sites); 
 
“Councillors on site on a regular basis to deal with enquiries and advise on 
future plans for area” 
 
“Access and availability to ICT and as a place for learning e.g. ICT and 
lifelong learning opportunities” 
 
“Family history research facilities” 
 
“Children's story time for little ones” 
 
"Audio and video material should be available" 
 
"A facility to download books onto my own computer, IPad etc" 
 
“Outreach into schools” 
 
“School holiday events for children, Reading groups etc for the wider 
community” 
 
"Special activities such as reading groups, encouragement of children's love 
of books, author visits, art/craft exhibitions" 
 
"There needs to be internet facilities. Also, the CD & DVD library is desirable" 
 
Example of new proposals / suggestions; 
 
“Fast drop box to return DVDs and books" 
 
“A library also needs to be able to provide social interaction for its users 
especially the young and old population.  For some elderly people it can 
provide a valuable source of company” 

Page 45



We propose that only the 4 main libraries at West Kirby, Wallasey, 
Birkenhead and Bebington will maintain evening openings to allow for 
Wednesday openings across all libraries.  Do you agree with this 
proposal? 
 
Q6 Do you agree only 4 main libraries should maintain evening 
opening? 
 
 Strongly agree 19% 
 Agree 36% 
 No opinion 11% 
 Disagree 19% 
 Strongly disagree 15% 
 
Although just over half of the respondents agreed/strongly agreed this was a 
question that had a huge number of comments; showing what a big issue 
opening hours is and the strength of feeling there is on the subject; 
 
1. Working People/Students/Children 
 
"All services should be available to all members of the community, by closing 
libraries or not having them open during the evening you are alienating those 
who are working or attending full time education.  In the future when other 
community services are incorporated within the library building you would be 
denying the public access to these services by limiting the opening time" 
 
"I work Mon Sat; if you do this I will not be able to access my local library 
(Rock Ferry)   public transport links in the evenings are too poor from 
Birkenhead /Bebington. Why discriminate against people who work? Better to 
have one extra day that all libraries are shut, rather than most never having 
evening hours" 
 
"Libraries need to be open for children and young people in the evening to 
support learning and provide a place of peace and quiet, and to read. This is 
especially true of areas of greater social deprivation such as Seacombe, so 
for these areas I would urge evenings are more important than Wednesday 
opening" 
 
“There are families and students who will not be able to get to those four 
libraries. I think local libraries should remain open if there is a demand for it. If 
they are not being used during the evening then it is okay to close them but 
you cannot close them if the demand is there. I would not want my 13 year old 
daughter to have to travel around Wirral in the dark winter months if there was 
a library nearby” 
 
“I disagree if it will mean that school pupils will no longer have a quiet venue 
for completing homework or research particularly in less affluent areas. It will 
also be difficult for employed adults to use the local service apart from 
Saturdays” 
 

Page 46



"You are once again forgetting that the tax payer (those who work) wish to 
use their local library, once again, those people who work will be penalised as 
their local library is unavailable during the evening" 
 
“Not everyone can visit their library between 9 5. Some children rely on using 
the computers and printers at their local library increasingly homework is set 
on school web sites” 
 
“Evening opening is essential working parents with school age children as it is 
one of the few times they can go to the library together” 
 
“What about people at work or children wanting to use the computer or other 
material some cannot study at home” 
 
"Families who cannot afford to run a car or spend a fortune on public transport 
will suffer there are households who cannot afford home computers, and their 
children will miss out. Libraries are safe place for children to visit alone but 
only if they are on the doorstep" 
 
2. Evening Events/Groups 
 
“Could libraries that normally do not open in evening be allowed to open in the 
evening for certain events?" 
 
"You should have all day Wednesday opening AND at least one evening to 
allow volunteer groups (e.g. Reading Groups) to meet when people are home 
from work.  Otherwise, some groups will cease meeting." 
 
3. Distance/Accessibility 
 
“Would like to see either Bromborough or Eastham library open at least one 
evening a week - we always feel slightly out on a limb down here.” 
 
"The local, smaller libraries need to be open late, as people who work and 
finish at 5 pm and have no form of transport other than public transport will not 
be able to access the other main libraries." 
 
"For people in Eastham, it is a considerable and expensive travel to even get 
to Bebington, and takes well over half an hour by the time they have walked to 
and from public transport (car ownership is low in Eastham, especially in the 
poorer groups), which reduces the time available to use the library. Local 
libraries MUST be open at times needed by the local community. Those who 
have always had a car available need to try getting around without one and 
make decisions based on that. Eastham often feels out on a limb   hence the 
battle to save our library from closure" 
 
4. Wednesday Openings 
 
“I think it has been a disgrace that libraries have been closed on Wednesdays 
for as long as they have. It is also a shame that they are not open on Sundays 
when people are available to use them” 
 

Page 47



"Not everybody has easy access to the main libraries, and I think evening 
opening makes more sense, even if they don't open on a Wednesday" 
 
“I work full time so evening & weekend opening is more important to me than 
Wednesday opening” 
 
“Makes it difficult for working people and children doing homework. We are 
now used to Wednesday closing” 
 
5. Other Suggestions/ Comments 
 
"Whilst having ONLY the four libraries mentioned open to evening sessions it 
would be fairer to have a ""four evening"" rotating system of opening thus 
giving all current libraries an equal opportunity to access library services in the 
evening" 
 
“Hours should be limited and if necessary later opening for later closing” 
 
“The option of attending all libraries on at least 1 evening a week should be 
provided” 
 
“I think this is a fabulous idea” 
 
"This is a VERY BAD idea.  If local libraries are not open in the evenings then 
anyone who works normal hours from 9.00 a. m. to 5.00 p. m., will not be able 
to access a library all week unless they can travel.  It would be better to go 
back to the idea of libraries opening at 10.00 a. m. and therefore with the 6 
hours saved, local libraries could open two evenings a week and Wednesday 
mornings" 
 

Page 48



Bearing in mind that only the 4 Central Libraries (Birkenhead Central, 
Wallasey Central, West Kirby and Bebington Central) will be open in the 
evenings, and that there are staffing and accommodation costs to 
keeping the library open, how many evenings do you think these 
libraries should be open? 
 

Question 7 
 

7 Number of evenings 4 main libraries should open

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

1 2 3 4 5

 
 
A lot of the respondents on this question repeated their previous statements 
(above question).  
 
The vast majority of comments were suggestions to keep all libraries open at 
least one night a week; 
 
There were a lot of comments on how the question was written which caused 
some concern/confusion 
 

Page 49



Question 8 listed the core facilities that all libraries will provide and the 
additional facilities that will be available in the Central libraries.  
Respondents were asked if they agreed with these proposals.  
 
Q8 Do you agree with the Core Facilities and Central Library facilities 

proposals? 
 
 Strongly agree 50% 
 Agree 43% 
 No opinion   2% 
 Disagree   4% 
 Strongly disagree   1% 
 
The vast majority of respondents agreed with these proposals.  There were a 
great many comments about the café which are repeated again in question 
10.  The other main themes amongst the responses were; 
 
1. Library Environment 
2. Facilities 
3. Library Services   
4. Additional comments included; 
Publicity and staffing levels 
 
 
Q9 Is there anything not included in these lists that you would like to 

see in your library? 
 
1. EBooks - “Stock Improvement" 
 
2. Toilet Facilities 
 
3. Local Information 
 
4. Events/Courses 
 
5. Extended Services in the Library  
 
6. Environment in the Library  
 

Page 50



Do you agree that a Café would be a positive addition to Libraries where 
space allows? 
 
Q10 Do you agree that a café area would be a positive addition to 

libraries where space allows? 
 
 Strongly agree 32% 
 Agree 37% 
 No opinion 14% 
 Disagree 11% 
 Strongly disagree   6% 
 
There is a lot of agreement for a café area in libraries. The comments 
received can be put into the following categories; 
 
1. Library Environment 
2. Social Aspect 
3. Service 
4. Revenue/Pricing 
 
 
We are planning to introduce self service machines (RFID) for checking 
books in and out and making library payments. This will free up staff to 
deal with more complex enquiries and manage activities, displays and 
promotions. Do you agree with this proposal? 
 
Q11 Do you agree with the introduction of Self Service Machines? 
 
 Strongly agree 23% 
 Agree 41% 
 No opinion 12% 
 Disagree 15% 
 Strongly disagree   9% 
 
There is a lot of support for this proposal though there are concerns raised in 
the comments received; 
 
1. Human Contact via Staff 
2. Support with Technology 
 
This section was about responses to specific proposals in the Library 
Strategy and required reading of the document to enable full 
understanding of the proposals. 
 
From many of the comments it is clear that the respondents have not or could 
not read the document; 
 
 

Page 51



In section 5.5 of the strategy we have outlined what we plan to do to 
promote Reading for Pleasure. Do you agree with this proposal? 
 
Q12 Do you agree with the proposal to promote Reading for Pleasure? 
 
 Strongly agree 34% 
 Agree 51% 
 No opinion 13% 
 Disagree   2% 
 Strongly disagree   0% 
 
85% of people responding agreed with this proposal, the main areas for 
comment were; 
 
1. Book Stock 
2. EBooks 
3. Opening Hours 
4. Other Comments 
"Children, young people and adults have the opportunity to hear words read 
out loud it brings reading for pleasure to life” 
 
"Better publicity is needed” 
 
 
In section 5.6 of the Library Strategy we have outlined what we plan to 
do to make a library a place to visit for information for study, research, 
self improvement and knowledge. Do you agree with this proposal? 
 
Q13 Do you agree with the proposal to promote Library use for Study, 

Research and Knowledge? 
 
 Strongly agree 39% 
 Agree 51% 
 No opinion   9% 
 Disagree   1% 
 Strongly disagree   0% 
 
90% of people who responded to the survey agreed with this proposal raising 
a few areas of concern as listed below; 
 
1. Reference Services 
2. I.T. 
3. Opening Hours  
 
 

Page 52



In section 5.8 of the Library Strategy we have outlined what we plan to 
do to make a library a source of local community information. Do you 
agree with this proposal? 
 
Q14 Do you agree Libraries should be a source of local community 
information? 
 
 Strongly agree 37% 
 Agree 48% 
 No opinion 11% 
 Disagree   3% 
 Strongly disagree   1% 
 
 
The vast majority of respondents were in agreement with this proposal,  
 
 
In section 5.9 of the Library Strategy we have outlined what we plan to 
do to make a library a source of public service information. Do you 
agree with this proposal? 
 
Q15 Do you agree Libraries should be a source of Public Service 
information? 
 
 Strongly agree 32% 
 Agree 48% 
 No opinion 16% 
 Disagree   3% 
 Strongly disagree   1% 
 
Although the vast majority of people agreed with this proposal it became 
apparent through comments that a lot of people did not fully understand 
paragraph 5.9.1; 
 
 
In section 6.2 of the Library Strategy we have outlined what we plan to 
do to contribute to the Council’s key objective to support families. Do 
you agree with this proposal? 
 
Q16 Do you agree with the proposal to contribute to the Council’s key 

objective to Support Families? 
 
 Strongly agree 27% 
 Agree 45% 
 No opinion 24% 
 Disagree   3% 
 Strongly disagree   1% 
 
The majority of respondents agreed with this proposal. A lot of comments 
made were in reference to opening hours; 
 
 

Page 53



In section 6.3 of the Library Strategy we have outlined what we plan to 
do to contribute to the Council’s key objective to support vulnerable 
adults. Do you agree with this proposal? 
 
Q17 Do you agree with the proposal to contribute to the Council’s key 

objective to Support Vulnerable Adults? 
 
 Strongly agree 28% 
 Agree 45% 
 No opinion 22% 
 Disagree   4% 
 Strongly disagree   1% 
 
This proposal was agreed with by a large number of respondents, comments 
that came up included; 
 
 
In section 6.4 of the Library Strategy we have outlined what we plan to 
do to contribute to the council’s key objective to develop cohesive 
neighbourhoods. Do you agree with this proposal? 
 
Q18 Do you agree with the proposal to contribute to the Council’s key 

objective to develop Cohesive Neighbourhoods? 
 
 Strongly agree 23% 
 Agree 44% 
 No opinion 27% 
 Disagree   5% 
 Strongly disagree   1% 
 
This proposal was agreed with by the majority of people though a lot of 
comments raised the issue of opening hours; 
 
 
In section 6.5 of the Library Strategy we have outlined what we plan to 
do to contribute to the Council’s key objective to increase employment 
in Wirral. Do you agree with this proposal? 
 
Q19 Do you agree with the proposal to contribute to the Council’s key 

objective to Increase Employment? 
 
 Strongly agree 31% 
 Agree 47% 
 No opinion 18% 
 Disagree   3% 
 Strongly disagree   1% 
 
78% agreed with this proposal. The reoccurring theme among the comments 
was of opening hours 
 
 

Page 54



In section 6.6 of the Library Strategy we have outlined what we plan to 
do to increase the involvement of the independent, voluntary, 
community and faith sectors in Council service delivery and transfer 
more power to neighbourhoods. Do you agree with this proposal? 
 
Q20 Do you agree with the proposal to contribute to the Council’s key 

objective to increase the involvement of the VCF sector? 
 
 Strongly agree 21% 
 Agree 37% 
 No opinion 27% 
 Disagree 10% 
 Strongly disagree   5% 
 
The above chart shows 58% of people responded in agreement with the 
proposal though comments received show some concern over the use of 
volunteers and the involvement of faith groups; 
 
Do you agree that this strategy fits Wirral’s needs? 
 
We asked people if they thought the Draft Libraries Strategy fits Wirral’s 
needs, this is how they responded:  
 
Q21 Do you agree that this strategy fits Wirral’s needs? 
 
 Strongly agree 18% 
 Agree 54% 
 No opinion 18% 
 Disagree   7% 
 Strongly disagree   3% 
 
The responses clearly show that the large majority of people either “agree” or 
“strongly agree” that the strategy fits Wirral’s needs with a small percentage 
(10%) disagreeing/strongly disagreeing.  
 
Many of the comments agreeing/strongly agreeing with this question also 
raised concerns over the possibility of losing library space/services to One 
Stop Shops or losing facilities from their “local” library to the 4 “Central” 
libraries.  
 
A reoccurring theme raised in the responses to this question was the issue of 
evening opening hours and how the reduction of these is in contradiction to 
many of the strategies aims.   
 
From the responses it became apparent that many of the respondents had not 
read the strategy either because of lack of time, length of document or unsure 
where/how to access it. 
 
 
 
 

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 
28 MARCH  2012 
 

SUBJECT: PROGRESS ON THE CONTROL OF ILLICIT 
SALES TO YOUNG PEOPLE 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF LAW, HR AND 
ASSET MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER:  

 

KEY DECISION?  NO 
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 A report to advise Members of the steps taken to control illicit sales to young people 
including under age sales and the sale of illicit tobacco and alcohol. The local authority 
has a statutory responsibility to enforce provisions prohibiting the sale of age restricted 
products and provisions requiring legible health warnings on tobacco products. 

 
1.2 This report was requested as part of the annual work plan for the Committee. 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 
2.1  UNDER AGE SALES LEGISLATION 
 
2.1.1 The following legislation places restrictions on the age at which certain products may 

be sold. 
 

• Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003 
It is an offence to sell aerosol spray paint to persons aged under 16. 

 
• Children and Young Persons (Protection From Tobacco) Act 1991 
• Children and Young Persons Act 1933 
It is an offence for any person to sell cigarettes, tobacco products or cigarette papers 
to anyone under 18 years of age. 

 
• Cigarette Lighter Refill (Safety) Regulations 1999 
It is an offence to supply cigarette lighter refill canisters containing butane to anyone 
under 18. 

 
• Fireworks (Safety) Regulations 1997 (as amended) 
It is an offence to supply fireworks, including sparklers, to a person under the age of 
18. 

 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 57



• Intoxicating Substances (Supply) Act 1985 
It is an offence if volatile substances or solvent-based products are sold, and it is 
believed that they are for a person under the age of 18, and that they are likely to be 
inhaled for the purposes of becoming intoxicated. This offence applies even when it 
is known that another person is buying the product for a person under the age of 18. 

 
• Licensing Act 2003 
It is an offence to sell alcohol to anyone under 18, or for a person under 18 to sell 
alcohol, unless a responsible person has approved the sale. 

 
• National Lottery Etc Act 1993 
It is an offence to sell National Lottery tickets and scratch cards to any person under 
16. 

 
• Offensive Weapons Act 1996 
It is an offence for a person to sell to a person under the age of 18: 
any knife, knife blade or razor blade; any axe; any other article which has a blade or 
which is sharply pointed, and which is made or adapted for use for causing injury to 
the person. 

 
• Video Recordings Act 2010 
It is an offence to supply a video recording to any person who has not attained the 
age specified on the recording. This legislation applies to video films and DVDs, 
video games and computer games. 

 
2.2  NATIONAL POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.2.1 Government has recognised the need to reduce the potential harm that the use of 

alcohol and tobacco can cause to young people.  This is reflected in several national 
policy documents. 
 

2.2.2 The National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE) 1, has published its 
Guidance, (Alcohol use-disorders: preventing harmful drinking - reference 
PH024), which, there are aims that are designed to prevent disorder from 
adolescents misusing alcohol.  In relation to under age sales of alcohol the guidance 
recommends;  

 
• Ensuring that sufficient resources are available to prevent under age sales, proxy 

sales (that is illegal purchases for someone who is under age) and the sale of 
illegally imported alcohol. 

 
• Working in partnership with the appropriate authorities to identify and take action 

against premises that regularly sell alcohol to people who are under age. 
 

• Undertake test purchases to ensure compliance with the law on under age sales.  
 

• Ensure sanctions are fully employed to businesses that break the law on under 
age sales. This includes fixed penalty and closure notices (the latter should be 
applied to establishments that persistently sell alcohol to children and young 
people). 

 

Page 58



2.2.3 The Department of Health2 has published "A smoke-free future – a comprehensive 
tobacco control strategy for England" which, inter alia, has the objective of stemming 
the rate at which young people are taking up smoking. This strategy recommends: 

 
• Joint working between police, HMRC and Trading Standards to disrupt the sale of 

counterfeit, illegally imported or duty diverted tobacco products. 
 

• Reducing the supply to children by conducting test purchasing campaigns. 
 

• Targeting traders who sell tobacco product through the illicit economy e.g. street 
sellers, mobile shops and sales from domestic premises. 

 
• Removal of the display of tobacco products by retailers. 

 
• Prohibiting the use of cigarette vending machines. 

 
2.2.4 Trading Standards is one of several partners working with NHS Trust Public Health 

to deliver the Wirral Tobacco Control Action Plan 2012/131 
 
2.2.5 In respect of alcohol partnership working. Trading Standards are contributing to the 

work of the “Community Alcohol Partnership” which is a unique partnership between 
The Retail of Alcohol Standards Group (RASG), Local Authority and Police, working 
together using existing provisions to provide a sustainable solution to the problems 
of under age drinking and associated anti-social behaviour 3. 

 
2.2.6 The Local Better Regulation Office (LBRO) national priority to: “Help people to live 

healthier lives by preventing ill health and harm and promoting public health”, is 
incorporated into the Trading Standards service plans for 2012/134. 

 
2.2.7 On the 14th January 2010 the Scrutiny Programme Board appointed the Alcohol 

Scrutiny Panel to "Carry out a Scrutiny Review of the impact that alcohol 
consumption by young people is having on those young people and the wider 
community".  The Report of the Scrutiny Panel5, “Access to Alcohol by Young 
People in Wirral”3 included the following recommendation: 

 
“The work of Trading Standards is considered an important element in combating 
the sale of alcohol to young people. An additional £40,000 was included in the 
2010/11 budget of the Council to enable Trading Standards to continue tackling 
under-age sales of alcohol using a number of methods, including test purchasing, 
which had led to a reduction in sales to underage young people. Cabinet is urged to 
retain that financial support.” 

 
2.3 UNDER AGE SALES ACTIVITY 
 
Alcohol 
 
2.3.1 It is a criminal offence under the Licensing Act 2003 to sell alcohol to a person under 

the age of 18. Wirral Council's Trading Standards Division work closely with 
Merseyside Police to minimise the sale of alcohol to young people and reduce the 
potential for anti-social behaviour and prevent risk of harm to young people, 
including regretted sexual behaviour and long term health risks.  The Police and 

Page 59



Social Reform Act 2011, has a provision to double the fine for premises that 
persistently sell alcohol to under18s.  The length of the suspensions that can be 
imposed for such premises on Review is also increased. 

 
2.3.2 Trading Standards Service has instigated the review of 12 premises licences and at 

this point in time 4 licences have been revoked and additional conditions applied to 4 
others. 

 
2.3.3 An important part of the overall strategy to reduce the sale of alcohol to young 

people is to engage with off licence businesses to enable them to accept their legal 
and moral responsibilities. Trading Standards prioritises staff resources to provide 
training to all premises that have been found to be in contravention of the law with 
22 business employees receiving training. The focus in 2011 was on enforcement 
activity. Trading Standards have used an intelligence led, robust, enforcement 
programme and so far 45 test purchase attempts were made using under age 
volunteers at off licences.  Of these 45 visits 8 sales were made.  This provides a 
failure rate of 18%, which is high but activity has been targeted where intelligence 
indicates a premises may be selling alcohol to young people.  

 
2.3.4 In each instance where alcohol is sold to a minor the member of staff who sold the 

alcohol is referred to Merseyside Police Licensing team who issue an £80 fixed 
penalty notice. A further investigation is then carried out by Trading Standards to 
determine if the procedures adopted by the off-licence are reasonable to satisfy the 
statutory defence available to the business i.e. that they had reasonable precautions 
in place to prevent the offence.  

 
2.3.5 In accordance with the Council's enforcement policy traders can be advised or 

warned as to their future conduct, offered a caution or prosecuted. Additionally a 
premises licence to sell alcohol can be brought into Review, which may result in 
conditions being imposed on the licence, the licence being suspended or the licence 
being revoked. A total of 4 formal cautions were issued and 12 premises license 
reviews conducted. 

 
2.3.6 Trading Standards are also working with NHS Wirral and the Wirral Drug & Alcohol 

Action Team and the Alcohol Strategy Programme Manager to deliver the “Citizen 
Card” initiative. The card is designed to be carried by young people to prove their 
age, and, with its distinctive PASS (Proof of Age Standards Scheme) logo, is 
designed to combat confusion over fake ID and novelty cards. Young persons are 
being invited to apply for a proof of age card which will be recognised by staff at 
licensed premises.  The initiative raises awareness of underage issues and provides 
a method by which staff at licensed premises can assure themselves that they are 
not selling to an underage person. The cost of the card is £15 but as part of the 
launch the first 300 applicants will receive the card for £10 and they will receive a 
free cinema ticket. For those living in parts of Birkenhead, Tranmere, Rock Ferry and 
Wallasey, where there are higher incidences of under age sales occurring, the card 
is being provided free of charge. So far 600 applications have been distributed and 
90 applications are being processed. 

 
 
 
 

Page 60



Fireworks 
 
2.3.7  Misuse of fireworks can be both dangerous and contribute to anti-social behaviour. 

Legal requirements reflect these concerns and only allow fireworks to be sold to a 
person over 18. In November 2011 a firework test purchasing exercise was 
conducted and 14 premises visited. Only one of the premises tested sold fireworks 
to the under age volunteer.  This resulted in a caution being signed by the owner of 
the business and the offer of training for all staff being made. 

 
Tobacco 
 
2.3.8 During 2011 and into 2012, 35 test purchasing visits were made to shops in Wirral 

and 5 were made from mobile vans.  Of these premises, 3 made sales of a tobacco 
product to the child volunteer.   

 
2.3.9 On the 1st October 2011 the Protection from Tobacco (Sales from Vending 

Machines) (England) Regulations 2010 came into force.  During November, Trading 
Standards was able to access external funding to enable 30 visits to be made to 
premises to ensure compliance with the new Regulations.  Out of the 30 visits 2 
premises were in breach of the new rules, however these were minor breaches and 
compliance has been achieved informally. 

 
2.4 CONTROLLING OTHER ILLICIT SALES 
 
2.4.1 During 2011 an increase in the possession of illicit tobacco and alcohol for sale was 

noted. Illicit tobacco and alcohol are either counterfeit copies of legitimate products 
or legitimate products which have been either diverted from export stock, or illegally 
imported, to evade duty. 

 
2.4.2 Trading Standards North West6 (TSNW) has reported that the volume of illegal 

tobacco bought has gone down by 11% in the North West between 2009 and 2011. 
This equates to nearly 60 million fewer illegal cigarettes and over £13m less duty 
and VAT evasion in the region. 

 
2.4.3 In Cheshire & Merseyside the number of people who admit to buying illegal tobacco 

has fallen from 17% in 2009 to 15% in 2011 
 
2.4.4 The extensive TSNW6 survey of over 4,111 people across the North of England 

including 1,045 people in Cheshire & Merseyside, first carried out in 2009 and 
repeated in 2011, has found that fewer people are buying illegal tobacco and those 
buying it are buying less: 

 
• There are fewer smokers and of those there has been a drop in average daily 

tobacco consumption from 15% in 2009 to 12% in 2011. 
• Likelihood to report sellers if selling to children has increased from 68% in 2009 

amongst non-smokers and smokers to 73%, including those who admit to buying 
illegal tobacco. 

• Likelihood to report sellers has risen from 24% in 2009 to more than a quarter (26%) 
in 2011. 

• Awareness of illegal tobacco has increased from 49% in 2009 to 69% in 2011. 

Page 61



• The number of non smokers that have come across illegal tobacco has fallen from 
24% in 2009 to 21% in 2011. 

• The number of smokers buying illegal tobacco has fallen from 17% to 15%. 
• 58% of people say that they are very uncomfortable with illegal tobacco which has 

increased from 55% in 2009. 
• There has been a big drop in the number of people buying duty free cigarettes from 

49% in 2009 to 32% in 2011. 
 
2.4.5 Illicit tobacco and alcohol not only undercuts legitimate businesses who can't 

compete with the low prices their illegal competitors offer but is also a significant loss 
tax revenue from HM Treasury. Trading Standards Service works closely with 
colleagues in HM Revenue and Customs to target those selling illicit tobacco and 
alcohol. 

 
2.4.6 Far from being a victimless crime, the trade in illicit tobacco has serious 

consequences for health, crime and community cohesion. It is linked to both low 
level and large scale organised crime. Illicit tobacco sales are targeted in 
disadvantaged communities where people are most vulnerable.  

 
2.5 RESOURCING OF UNDER AGE SALES WORK 
 
2.5.1 In 2007 the local authority signed a service level agreement with Wirral NHS (at the 

time Wirral PCT) agreeing to provide an under age sales prevention and detection 
project. The NHS provided funding of £75,000 p.a. which enabled 2 officers to be 
employed on fixed term contracts until March 2010. The appointed officers have 
since left the employment of the Council. 

 
2.5.2 In financial year 2010/11 provision was made in the Council budget for funding of 

£40,000 to continue this work and an appointment of a dedicated enforcement 
officer has been made in October 2011. 

 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 Failure to tackle underage sales places vulnerable adults and children at risk of harm 
and criminal activity goes undetected. 

 
 
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 Trading Standards provide advisory material and training to business owners and staff 
but offences are still detected. 

 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 None 
 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 None 
 
 

Page 62



7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 None 
 
 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (as amended) has required the Council to 
review its procedures for authorising directed surveillance, access to communications 
data and the use of covert human intelligence sources. 

 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 (c) No because of another reason which is 
  
 This report is an information report and the activity described is separately subject to 

impact assessment. 
 
 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 None 
 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 No planning implications. Reducing the access young people have to age restricted 
products will minimise the risk of harm to them and reduce anti social behaviour 

 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 That Members note contents of the report. 
 
 
13.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 The report was requested as part of the work programme for this Committee. It 
provides information about the underage enforcement activity undertaken by Trading 
Standards Service and their partners.  The report is presented for the consideration of 
Members. 

 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Derek Payet 
  Trading Standards Strategic Manager 
  Telephone:  (0151 691 8640 
  email:   derekpayet@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
APPENDICES 

 

None  
 

Page 63



REFERENCE MATERIAL 

1 National Institute for Clinical Excellence: Alcohol-use Disorders: preventing the 
development of hazardous and harmful drinking, (June 2010). 
http://www.nice.org.uk/PH24 
 

2 Department of Health, A Smokefree Future, a comprehensive tobacco strategy for 
England (February 2010). 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPolicyAn
dGuidance/DH_111749 

 
3. Community Alcohol Partnership Activity Document 
 

2. Partner Activity 
document.doc  

 
4. Appendix 1 - Wirral Tobacco Control Action Plan 2012/13  

Action Plan V1.xls

 
 
5. Wirral, Report of the Alcohol Scrutiny Review: Access to Alcohol by Young People in 

Wirral, (December 2010). 
 

C:\espasa\Temp\
Alcohol\AlcoholScrutinyReviewAppendix.pdf 

 
6. Trading Standards North West: Young Persons Alcohol and Tobacco Survey North 

West Results, (June 2011) 
 

 
H:\Rob Beresford\

Trading Standards\TSNW Survey Results June 2011 NW.ppt 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 
 
Council Meeting  Date 

Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee: Progress on the Control of Illicit Sales to 

Young People 

Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee: Sale of Alcohol to Young People. 

10-03-2011 

 

 

08-03-2010 

 

 

Page 64



�
�

���������	
����

�	����
�
�������	
����������������
�����	��
������������

��������������

�

�	
������ �����������	
���
	��	���	��	�
����	���	��

����������������� 
���

�����������


��
��	������
�	����	�����������
����	������
�������	�
����
�	����	�����
����	�����
�����
�
�
�������

�����
��
���
������������������

�  !��"# "$�	"��%"���& '&!"���"%#&!"�(��)&!%#*�
�  !�
�+"��%',-"  ���'!""'#,"�"�(��!��#.)!'�

�����������
��� ���
�
�

���� � ��	������	������

�/�� �-%#� !".)!'� #"'#� )&'� ."!0)!*��,"� )0� '-"� �)&�,% 1#� �)!.)!�'"� � ��� ����2�3� 0)!� �,')4"!� ')�

","*4"!� ������ %�� !" �'%)�� ')� #&#'�%��4 "� ,)**&�%'%"#�� ���� .!)+%�"#� �"*4"!#� 5%'-� ���
)+"!+%"5�)0�,)!.)!�'"�.!%)!%'$�."!0)!*��,"��!"#)&!,"�����!%#6�*)�%')!%�7/�

�
�/�� �-%#�!".)!'��)"#��)'�,)�'�%��"8"*.'�%�0)!*�'%)�/�
�

���� 
���!��	
���
���������	���

�/������"!0)!*��,"��&**�!$�
�

�-%#� !".)!'� .!)+%�"#� ��� )+"!+%"5� )0� 9&�!'"!� '-!""� ."!0)!*��,"� 5%'-� �"'�% � )&' %�"�� %�, &�%�7�
,)!!",'%+"��,'%)��0)!�."!0)!*��,"�%##&"#/���

� �
�/�/��� �-�'1#�5)!6%�7�5"  ��
�

�� ���"#$%��&'()&*+,��-$./0�"-%,��1$$)(�)2#&',%�%3/�&)%1#&)(�(/)*/$,�43/&�1%�5#2/,�
%#�,"#$%,�")$%151")%1#&��!".)!'%�7�'-�'��:/:;�)0�'-)#"���& '#�#&!+"$"��%���,')4"!������%��
�%!!� � #�%�� '-�'� '-"$� '))6� .�!'� %��� )�� �+"!�7"�� #.)!'� ���� �,'%+"� !",!"�'%)�� �'� *)�"!�'"�
%�'"�#%'$�0)!����"9&%+� "�'�)0�<��*%�&'"#�)��<�)!�*)!"���$#���5""6/��-%#�5�#����%�,!"�#"�
)0� =;� �7�%�#'� �>/:;� %�� ���:�� 0�!� "8,""�%�7� �?;� ��'%)��  $� ���� '-"� )'-"!� �"!#"$#%�"�
4)!)&7-#�@A�)5# "$�@�>/3;B���"0')��@�>/:;B���'��" "�#�@��;B�������%+"!.)) ���'-"�)� $�
)'-"!��"!#"$#%�"��&'-)!%'$�')�#-)5�#%7�%0%,��'�%�,!"�#"�2�5%'-���/�;/�

�� 
)%1#&)(� "$)1,/� 6#$��1$$)(+,� "/,%� 5#&%$#((/$,� 7��-"� �"#'� �)�'!) � '"�*�� .�!'� )0� �%!!� �
�)&�,% 1#� ��+%!)�*"�'� � �"� '-� �%+%#%)��� -�#� !","%+"�� '-"� �&#')*"!� �"!+%,"� �8,"  "�,"�
�5�!��0!)*�'-"���4%�"'��00%,"�0)!�'-"�#",)���#&,,"##%+"�$"�!/�

�� �"//*1&'� *$1./$,� '#� 8/6#$/� 9�1*+,� �#-$%+� 7� �.""�%�7� *)')!%#'#� )&'#%�"� �� #,-)) � %��
�!"�#4$�5"!"�7%+"�����!"##%�7��)5��4$�'-"�.&.% #�'-"$�5"!"��,,&#"��)0�.&''%�7��'�!%#6/�
���"!� '-"� C)%�'� %�%'%�'%+"�� !&�� 4$� �%!!� � �)&�,% 1#� 	)��� ��0"'$� �"�*� ���� �"!#"$#%�"�
�) %,"��#�.�!'�)0�	)�����0"'$��""6�@�)+���2�?B��*)')!%#'#�,�&7-'�#.""�%�7��!%+%�7�.�#'�
'-"�#,-)) �5"!"�7%+"��'-"�,-)%,"�)0�4"%�7�0%�"������-�+%�7�.)%�'#�.&'�)��'-"%!� %,"�,"��)!�
4"%�7�D7!%  "�1�4$���.��" �)0�,-% �!"��0!)*�'-"�#,-)) ��4)&'�'-"%!�4"-�+%)&!/��

�� �18$)$1/,� #66/$� *#4&(#)*)8(/� 8##:,� 7� �%!!� � �%4!�!%"#� -�+"� !","�' $� %�'!)�&,"�� ���
%��)+�'%+"� �"5� 5�$� 0)!� *"*4"!#� ')� 4)!!)5� 4))6#/� ��6%�7� '-"� #"!+%,"� 0)!5�!�� ����

Agenda Item 8

Page 65



�
�

)."�%�7�&.�')��"5�&#"!#��'-"�%�'!)�&,'%)��)0�"2�))6#�����"2
&�%)4))6#��  )5#�4)!!)5"!#�
')��,,"##�'-"%!�0�+)&!%'"�4))6#������&�%)4))6#�0!)*�'-"�,)*0)!'�)0�'-"%!�)5��-)*"/���

�� �3/$/�3),�8//&�5#&%1&-#-,��2"$#./2/&%�1&�%3/�$/*-5%1#&�#6�21,,/*�81&�5#((/5%1#&,�
)&*�/&.1$#&2/&%)(�5(/)&(1&/,,��@3/:� )5"!�'-���9&�!'"!�'5)������>/:�4" )5�'-"�'�!7"'�)0�
3�� *%##"�� 4%�#� ."!� �������� ,)  ",'%)�#B� ���� %�� '-"� *�%�'"���,"� )0� #'!""'� ����
"�+%!)�*"�'� � , "�� %�"##� @,)*4%�"��  "+" #� )0�  %''"!� ���� �"'!%'&#B� 5-%,-� -�#� �!).."�� ')�
:/3>;���/:�;�4" )5�'-"�'�!7"'/��

�� �3/�(/./(�#6���/*�"(/*'/,�3),�1&5$/),/*�%#�;<���"8,""�%�7�'-"�'�!7"'�)0�:���

�� 
-28/$� #6� ,/$1#-,� .1#(/&%� :&16/� 5$12/,� "/$� �=���� "#"-()%1#&� )$/� 8/(#4� %)$'/%�
@��!7"'� �/�:3� �� 
,'&� � �/�E>B/� ��#'� $"�!� '-"!"� 5�#� ��� �+"!�7"� )0� :� 6�%0"� ,!%*"#� ."!�
*)�'-/��)���'"�'-"!"�-�+"�4""�� "##�'-���<�6�%0"�,!%*"#�."!�*)�'-/��-%#� %#�3�;�4" )5�
'�!7"'/�

�� 
-28/$�#6�'-&�5$12/,�)$/�8/(#4�%)$'/%�"/$��=����"#"-()%1#&� @��!7"'� �/�3���
,'&� �
�/��>B/��-%#�� #)�"9&�'"#�')�&��"!�-� 0�'-"��&*4"!�7&��,!%*"#�,)*.�!"��')� �#'�$"�!/�

�
�� ��(5#3#(�$/()%/*�.1#(/&5/�>�#-%3?� 1,�)(,#�8/(#4�%)$'/%� @��!7"'�������
,'&� �?EB��<;�

 "##�'-���'�!7"'�
�

�/�/������"!0)!*��,"��7�%�#'��)!.)!�'"�� ���.!)C",'@#B�

�

�-"�0)  )5%�7�.!)C",'#�-�+"�4""���##"##"���#�)28/$�)!�-�+"�4""��5(#,/*�)!�41%3*$)4&��
�

�#$%6#(1#� �/0�"$#@/5%� �%)%-,� �#$$/5%1./��5%1#&��

A�� A�� AB�

�'!""'#,"�"�
(��!��#.)!'�
�"!+%,"#�

�$�������!"�&,"�'-"�
')'� ��&*4"!�)0�
."). "�6%  "��)!�
#"!%)&# $�%�C&!"��
@A��B�!)���'!�00%,�
,�#&� '%"#�4$�:�;��
,)*.�!"��5%'-�'-"�
�+"!�7"�0)!����32EF��
@��!7"'�0)!������G�
!"�&,"�')���=F�
��!7"'�0)!������G�
!"�&,"�')���3F�
��!7"'�0)!����<�G�
!"�&,"�')����B�

!$//&� �28/$�

�%*% �!�,�#&� '$�'!"��#�),,&!!"��
%���<��#�%����/��%!!� ��)5�
!","%+"#�7!"�'"!�#'!�'"7%,�
"�0)!,"*"�'��,'%+%'$�4$�#.",%� %#'�
�!�00%,��) %,"/�������������������������������������

�� $#%#�)0�,�#&� '$���'��-�#�
4""��&��"!'�6"��������4%��
#&4*%''"��0)!����%'%)�� �0&��%�7�')�
���!"##�6�)5��,�#&� '$� ),�'%)�#�

�*. "*"�'���#.""��
!"#'!%,'%)��
.!)7!�**"��&!%�7�
�������� !$//&� �28/$�


..!�%#� �)0����"5�
".�!'*"�'�)0�
�!��#.)!'�#%7�%�7�.) %,$�!"+%"5�
-�#�4""��&��"!'�6"�/��
�!)7!�**%�7�)0���*.-�%��
!"#%�"�'%� ��!"�#�%#�&��"!5�$�5%'-�
.!).)#"��!".)!'�')���4%�"'�%��

.!% /�

�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 66



�
�

�
�

�#$%6#(1#� �/0�"$#@/5%� �%)%-,� �#$$/5%1./��5%1#&�

A�� A�� AB�

�)**&�%'$�
(��&#')*"!�
��7�7"*"�'�

�)*. "'"��#'�.-�#"�
%�'"7!�'%)��')�,)2
 ),�'"�'5)� %4!�!%"#�
5%'-�)�"�#').�#-).#�
4$��)+"*4"!������

!$//&� �28/$�

�'�00� 5"!"� !" ),�'"�� %�')� '-"�
#",)��� .% )'� *"!7"�� #%'"� �'�
��#'-�*� )."�"�� "�! $� H��&�!$�
������ ���� 4&% �%�7� 5)!6#� ')�
,)*. "'"� '-"� %�'"7!�'%)�� �!"�
)�7)%�7��

�
�#$%6#(1#� �/0�"$#@/5%� �%)%-,� �#$$/5%1./��5%1#&�

A�� A�� AB�

�)&#%�7�(�
�)**&�%'$�
��0"'$�

�*. "*"�'�
.!).)#� #��')�!"�&,"�
&��"!�),,&.�'%)��%��
#),%� �-)&#%�7�4$�

&7&#'������

!$//&� �28/$�

�)!6%�7� 5%'-� 	"7%#'"!"�� �),%� �
���� )!�#� ')� 0%�� %#"� .!).)#� #�
���� �7!""*"�'� ')� '�6"� .% )'�
0)!5�!��

�
�

� � �%)%-,� �

�#$%6#(1#� �/0�"$#@/5%� A�� A�� AB� �#$$/5%1./��5%1#&��

�& '&!"�
�)&!%#*�(�
�"%#&!"�

	)  �)&'��%��%��,!)##�
�%4!�!%"#�4$�
�)+"*4"!������

!$//&� �28/$�

�%20%�%#��)5�%���<��%4!�!$�#%'"#��
5%'-� '-"� !"#'� . ���"�� 0)!�
,)*. "'%)�� 4"'5""�� H��&�!$�
������!,-������

�&,,"##0&  $��" %+"!�
'-"���!6#�����
�)&�'!$#%�"�
�"!+%,"#�
�!),&!"*"�'�
�8"!,%#"�')�"��4 "�
.!).)#"��,)�'!�,'�
4"�"0%'#�')�4"�
�,-%"+"��4$�H��&�!$�
���"4!&�!$������

!$//&� �&�
�#(*� �(#,/*�

��4%�"'� �<� �)+"*4"!� �����
�7!""�� ')� '-"� !"'"�'%)�� )0� '-%#�
#"!+%,"�����'-%#�.!)C",'� %#��)5�
, )#"�/�

�
�
�/�/<����"!0)!*��,"��7�%�#'��'!�'"7%,��-��7"�.!)C",'@#B�

�

�-"�0)  )5%�7�#'!�'"7%,�,-��7"�.!)C",'�-�#�4""��5%'-�!�5���
�

�%)%-,� �$#@/5%� �#$$/5%1./��5%1#&�
A�� A�� AB� � �

!$//&� �28/$� �(#,/*� �
����� ��4%�"'� �<� �)+"*4"!� ����� �7!""�� ')� '-"� !"'"�'%)�� )0�
'-%#�#"!+%,"�����'-%#�.!)C",'�%#��)5�, )#"�/�

�
�
�

Page 67



�
�

�
�
�

�/�/3����"!0)!*��,"��7�%�#'�%��%,�')!@#BG�
�

�-"�0)  )5%�7�%��%,�')!�-�#�*%##"��%'#�9&�!'"!�'-!""�'�!7"'�����%#�'-"!"0)!"��##"##"���#�$/*��
�

�#$%6#(1#� ���&#� �1%(/�
����������

�&�
%)$'/%�

�1$/5%1#&�
#6�%$)./(�A��

�%)%-,�
AB�

�)$'/%�
AB�

�5%-)(�

�)&#%�7�(�
�)**&�%'$�
��0"'$�

���
<��

	"."�'�%�,%�"�'#�)0�
�)*"#'%,�+%) "�,"� �/*�

?/:<�
@�)5"!�%#�

�"''"!B�
>/E3�� �/*� �

�#$$/5%1./�
�5%1#&���

�

�-"��<�!)  %�7�')'� �0)!��)*"#'%,�+%) "�,"�!"."�'�+%,'%*%#�'%)��%���%!!� �)0�>/E3;�
%#���."!,"�'�7"�.)%�'#�)+"!�'-"�?/:<;�'�!7"'�#"'/��)5"+"!�'-%#��)"#��)'�%*. $�
.))!�."!0)!*��,"�)0��7"�,%"#�5)!6%�7�')7"'-"!�')�!"�&,"�!%#6/��-"��)**&�%'$�
��0"'$���!'�"!#-%.��'!�'"7%,�
##"##*"�'�%�"�'%0%"����3E;�!%#"�%��!"0"!!� #�����
0&!'-"!���� $#%#�#-)5"��'-�'�)0�'-)#"�!"0"!!� #��'-"�.!).)!'%)���##"##"���#�-%7-�
!%#6� %�,!"�#"�� 4$� �3;/� �-%#� %#� �� #&,,"##� %�� !"�&,%�7� '-"� &��"!2!".)!'%�7� )0�
�)*"#'%,�+%) "�,"�.�!'%,& �! $�0)!�'-)#"�'-�'��""��%'�*)#'/��

�-"� ,)�#"9&"�'%� � %�,!"�#"� %�� 5)!6 )��� .!)*.'"�� �� .) %,$� ,-��7"�
,)�,"�'!�'%�7� �  � #�0"7&�!�%�7� *"�#&!"#�� @%�, &�%�7� '-"� �& '%� 
7"�,$� 	%#6�

##"##*"�'� �)�0"!"�,"� .!),"##B�� )�� ')� -%7-� !%#6� +%,'%*#�� )� $/� �$� �"0%�%'%)��
-%7-� !%#6� , %"�'#� �!"� *)!"� .!)�"� ')� !"."�'� +%,'%*%#�'%)�/� �)5"+"!� �%!!� �
,)*.�!"#� +"!$� 0�+)&!�4 $� 5%'-� '-)#"� ,)  ",'"�� ��'%)��  $� 4$� �



�
@�))!�%��'"�� 
,'%)�� 
7�%�#'� 
)*"#'%,� 
4&#"B�� ���� -�#� 4""�� �,,!"�%'"�� 5%'-�
�"��%�7��%7-'#�#'�'&#�4$��



�5-"!"4$�!%7)!)&#�#,!&'%�$�-�#��"*)�#'!�'"��
"8"*. �!$�.!),"##"#�����.!),"�&!"#/�

�-"� %�'!)�&,'%)�� )0� !"#'!�%�%�7� )!�"!#� �&!%�7� ����� -�#� .!)+%�"�� ��� "8'!��
*",-��%#*� )0� �##&!��,"� '-�'� #&..)!'� %#� .!)+%�"�/� �)5"+"!� '-%#� ,)&�'#� �#� ��
,!%*"� 4"%�7� ,)**%''"���  "��%�7� ')� ��� %�,!"�#"� %�� ,!%*"�  "+" #�� 5-% #'� '-"�
+%,'%*%#�'%)��#'�'%#'%,#�!"*�%��&��00",'"�/��

�/$6#$2)&5/�
�&)(0,1,��

	"0"!!� #� -�+"� %�,!"�#"�� 4$� �/?3;� ,)*.�!"�� ')� 9&�!'"!� '-!""� �������� ����
�/�:;�,)*.�!"��')�9&�!'"!�)�"��������/��-%#�%#�,&!!"�' $�"8.",'"��')�"8,""��
'-"�$"�!�"���'�!7"'�4$��/3?;/�

�

�#$%6#(1#� ���&#� �1%(/�
����������

�&�
%)$'/%�

�1$/5%1#&�
#6�%$)./(�A��

�%)%-,�
AB�

�)$'/%�
AB�

�5%-)(�

�)!.)!�'"�
	"#)&!,"#� ���
��

?��>�

�&*4"!�)0��##"'#�
'!��#0"!!"��')�,)**&�%'$�
7!)&.#�

!$//&� :�� 3�� �/*� �

�#$$/5%1./�
�5%1#&���

�

�+"!')���)**&�%'$��"�'!"�2��!��#0"!�,)*. "'"�/�����)0�$"�!���!7"'��*"��"��
0)!� '-"� 0)  )5%�7� !"�#)�#G� �)$ �6"�� �%#,�!�� ���� �!)#+"�)!� ��#� -�+"� "�'"!"��
%�')�  "7� � �7!""*"�'#�� 4&'� '-"� 5)!6� !"9&%!"�� ')� '-"� .!)."!'%"#� 5%  � �)'� 4"�
,)*. "'"��&�'% �'-"�#&**"!/��� "��
" �*"!"���%,')!%����  ������!"�#4$��!"�)��
'-"� +"!7"� )0� "�'"!%�7� %�')�  "7� � �7!""*"�'#�� 4&'� �7�%�� 4",�&#"� )0� '-"� 5)!6#�
!"9&%!"�� �!"�  %6" $� ')� 7)� 4"$)��� ��!,-/� �),')!&*� �""�#� �� 0&!'-"!� �"*4"!�

Page 68



�
�

�",%#%)�� ����*�$� 7)� 4"$)��� ��!,-/�A$ "*)!"���))�,-&!,-���"#'4)&!�"� ��  �
���� �"5� �"!!$� �%  �7"� ��  � -�+"� 4""�� �" �$"�� 5-% "� '-"� �)**&�%'$� �&���
�  ),�'%)��%#�, �!%0%"�������!"��)5� %6" $�')�,)*. "'"�%��'-"�#&**"!/��"",-5))��
	",���"�#)5"��%7-'-)&#"������"5��!%7-')���)**&�%'$��"�'!"�5%  ��""��')�5�%'�
&�'% � '-"� �+�% �4 "� 0&��#� �!"� 6�)5�� ���� 5%  � �)'� '!��#0"!� 4"0)!"� ��!,-/�
�!)*4)!)&7-��),%� �,"�'!"�%#�5�%'%�7�0)!�
7"��A�')��",%�"�)����)'-"!�.!)."!'$/�
��

�/$6#$2)&5/�
�&)(0,1,��

�'�%#�"8.",'"��')��,-%"+"�'-"��*"��"��$"�!�"���'�!7"'��

�

�#$%6#(1#� ���&#� �1%(/�
����������

�&�
%)$'/%�

�1$/5%1#&�
#6�%$)./(�A��

�%)%-,�
AB�

�)$'/%�
AB�

�5%-)(�

��+%!)�*"�'� ���
��
?��:�

;��)�#&*"!�.!)'",'%)��
+%#%'#�."!�-%7-�!%#6�
.!"*%#"#�

!$//&� =:;� :=;� �/*� �

�#$$/5%1./�
�5%1#&���

�

	"9&%!"*"�'#�)0�'-"��))�������"'"!%��!%����00%,"�+%#%'#�'))6�.!%)!%'$�'-%#��'!�����
5%'-����)00%,"!�)��"8'"��"��*�'"!�%'$� "�+"�'-%#�'�!7"'�5�#��)'��,-%"+�4 "/��

�/$6#$2)&5/�
�&)(0,1,��


�. ���-�#�4""��0)!*& �'"��'-�'�5%  �#""6�')�"�#&!"�'-�'�'-%#�'�!7"'�%#�*"'�4$�'-"�
"���)0�'-"�$"�!/�

�

�#$%6#(1#� ���&#� �1%(/�
����������

�&�
%)$'/%�

�1$/5%1#&�
#6�%$)./(�A��

�%)%-,�
AB�

�)$'/%�
AB�

�5%-)(�

��+%!)�*"�'� ���
��
?�<��

�"!,"�'�7"�)0�&��"!2�7"�
#� "#�)0�� ,)-) ��&!%�7�
'"#'�.&!,-�#"�"8"!,%#"#�

!$//&� �:;� :�;� �/*� �

�#$$/5%1./�
�5%1#&���

�

�!"*%#"#� 5"!"� %�%'%�  $� '�!7"'"�� 4�#"�� )�� %�'"  %7"�,"� '-�'� '-"$� -��� #) �� ')�
,-% �!"�� ���� )&'� )0� 0)&!� '"#'"��� '5)� #� "#� '))6� . �,"/� �-"� �%�� � �&�!'"!� '"#'�
.&!,-�#"�"8"!,%#"#�5%  �0),&#�)��'-)#"�.!"*%#"#�5-%,-�-�+"�4""��7%+"����+%,"��
7&%���,"� ���� '!�%�%�7� 4$� �!��%�7� �'����!�#� �00%,"!#�� ���� %'� %#� ��'%,%.�'"�� '-�'�
'-"�!%#6�)0�'-"#"�.!"*%#"#�#"  %�7�')�,-% �!"��5%  �-�+"�4""��#%7�%0%,��' $�!"�&,"��
"��4 %�7�'-"�"���)0�$"�!�'�!7"'�0)!�'-"#"�.!"*%#"#�')�4"��,-%"+"�/�

�/$6#$2)&5/�
�&)(0,1,��

�"!0)!*��,"��7�%�#'�'-%#�'�!7"'�-�#��"'"!%)!�'"���5%'-���!%#"�%��'-"�."!,"�'�7"�)0�
&��"!2�7"�#� "#�)0�� ,)-) ��&!%�7�'"#'�.&!,-�#"�"8"!,%#"#�)0��E;�0!)*�'-"�0%!#'�
9&�!'"!�)0�������������4$�3�;�5-"��,)*.�!"��')�'-"�'-%!��9&�!'"!�%�����������
4&'�%'�%#�0)!",�#'�')��,-%"+"�'-"���������$"�!�"���'�!7"'/�

�-"�-%7-�."!,"�'�7"�5�#��&"�')�%'��)'�4"%�7���!".!"#"�'�'%+"�#�*. "��5%'-�)� $�
)�"�'"#'�.&!,-�#"�"8"!,%#"�0)!�� ,)-) �#� "#�4"%�7�,)��&,'"��%��'-"�<!��9&�!'"!��
�#� '-"� 0),&#� 5�#� . �,"�� )�� '-"� #� "� )0� ')4�,,)� '"#'� .&!,-�#%�7/� �)&!� � ,)-) �
.!"*%#"#�5"!"�'�!7"'"���4�#"��)��%�'"  %7"�,"�'-�'�'-"$�-���#) ��')�,-% �!"�/��&'�

Page 69



�
�

)0�'-)#"�0)&!�'"#'"���'5)�#� "#�'))6�. �,"/�

�
�

�#$%6#(1#� ���&#� �1%(/�
����������

�&�
%)$'/%�

�1$/5%1#&�
#6�%$)./(�A��

�%)%-,�
AB�

�)$'/%�
AB�

�5%-)(�

�)&#%�7�(�
�)**&�%'$�
��0"'$�

���
��
?�33� �)/�)0�4&!7 �!%"#� �/*� =E3� ?=E� �/*� �

�#$$/5%1./�
�5%1#&���

�


'�'-"�"���)0�'-"�'-%!��9&�!'"!��%!!� �%#���;��4)+"�'-"�'�!7"'�#"'/��-"�*"�#&!"�
%#� ,&*& �'%+"� ���� �"#.%'"� '-"� �+"!�7"� 4&!7 �!$� !�'"� 4"%�7� 5%'-%�� '�!7"'� 0)!� '-"�
 �#'�:�*)�'-#����#.�'"�)0�)+"!�����4&!7 �!%"#�."!�*)�'-��&!%�7���$��H&�"�����
H& $� -�#� *"��'� '-�'� �,-%"+%�7� '-"� "��� )0� $"�!� '�!7"'� 5%  � !"9&%!"� �� 0&!'-"!�
,)�,"!'"�� "00)!'� 0!)*� '-"� .�!'�"!#-%./� �%!!� � -�#� � !"��$� !",)+"!"�� #%7�%0%,��'�
7!)&���0!)*�4"%�7�<�;�)+"!�'�!7"'�%��H&�"/�

�/$6#$2)&5/�
�&)(0,1,��

�$� *�%�'�%�%�7� '-"� '!"��� #-)5�� )+"!� '-"�  �#'� <� *)�'-#� )0� =:� 4&!7 �!%"#� ."!�
*)�'-�����  "##� '-���  �#'�$"�!1#��+"!�7"���%!!� � 5%  �4"� 5%'-%��:;�)0� '-"����&� �
'�!7"'/��

�

�/�����	"#)&!,"�%*. %,�'%)�#�

�-"� *�%�� �!"�� )0� ,)�,"!�� !"*�%�#� '-"� �,-%"+"*"�'� )0� %�,)*"� '�!7"'#� %�, &�%�7� ,�!� .�!6%�7�
����,& '&!� �#"!+%,"#�5-%,-��!"�4"%�7�,)�'�%�"��4$�,)*."�#�')!$�#�+%�7#/��-"��" �$"��#� "�)0�
'-"���,%0%,�	)���
!'#�,)*. "8�*�$�� #)�-�+"���4&�7"'�!$�%*.�,'/�


��&*4"!�)0�.) %,$�).'%)�#�4"%�7�.!)7!"##"��%�, &�"�'-"�D0!""��0'"!�'-!""1�.�!6%�7�%�%'%�'%+"��'-"�
�"".� , "��� #'!""'� , "��#%�7� %�%'%�'%+"�� #&..)!'� 0)!� '-"� 
�'%2�),%� � �"-�+%)&!� '"�*� ����  %4!�!$�
"9&%.*"�'� ���� "�7�7"*"�'� #,-"*"#/� �-"� ,)**&�%'$� �##"'� '!��#0"!� .!)7!�**"� %#� � #)�
,)�'%�&%�7�

��.%'� � #,-"*"#� %�, &�"� !"�)+�'%)�#� ')� '-"� �%  %�*#)�� 
!'� ��  "!$� 5-%,-� ,)**"�,"�� %�� '-"�
#.!%�7�� '-"� ����%,��� �!"*�')!%&*� �"!,&!$� 
4�'"*"�'� #,-"*"� 5-%,-� ,)**"�,"�� %��
�".'"*4"!��������"8'"�#%+"�!)���*�%�'"���,"�.!)7!�**"�����4!%�7"�#'!"�7'-"�%�7�5)!6#/���

�/<�����&'&!"�,-�  "�7"#�����!%#6#�

�'�%#�%*.)!'��'�')��" %+"!�#"!+%,"#�')�*""'�'-"��""�#�����5��'#�)0�)&!�,%'%I"�#�����4&#%�"##"#/���
�)� -" .� �,-%"+"� '-%#� #%7�%0%,��'� ,)�#& '�'%)�#� -�+"� 4""�� &��"!'�6"�� ')� �##%#'� %�� '-"�
�"+" ).*"�'�)0��"%7-4)&!-))��. ��#�0)!�"�,-��!"������')�-" .�%�"�'%0$�.!%)!%'$��!"�#�')��##%#'�
5%'-�'-"��  ),�'%)��)0�!"#)&!,"#�0)!��"%7-4)&!-))��&#"/�

�-"� *)�"!�%#�'%)�� )0� '-"� *�%�'"���,"� �!!��7"*"�'#� 0)!� �%!!� 1#� .�!6#� ���� )."�� #.�,"#�
5-%,-� %�, &�"#� '-"� '!��#0"!� )0� #"!+%,"#� .!"+%)&# $� &��"!'�6"�� 4$� "8'"!�� � ,)�'!�,')!#� 5%  �
,!"�'"�0&'&!"�,-�  "�7"#�����)..)!'&�%'%"#/�

�"�'-"!� "+"�'#� *�$� � #)� %*.�,'� &.)�� �)&�,% � #"!+%,"#/� � 
� !"+%"5� )0� 5%�'"!� *�%�'"���,"�
�!!��7"*"�'#�-�#�4""��&��"!'�6"��')�-" .�*%'%7�'"�.)##%4 "��"7�'%+"�%*.�,'#�� '-)&7-�#)�0�!�
'-"�5%�'"!�-�#�4""��*% �/�

Page 70



�
�

���/3�����&#')*"!��""�4�,6��

���/3/��
,!)##�'-"��)&�,% �'-"!"�5"!"���')'� �)0���<���,&#')*"!�0""�4�,6�,)�'�,'#�!",)!�"��%��9&�!'"!�
<� @�<B�� 5-%,-� !".!"#"�'"�� �� �"7 %7%4 "� ,-��7"� 0!)*� ��� ���� %#� #'%  � #%7�%0%,��' $� 4" )5� '-"�
9&�!'"! $��+"!�7"�)0���=:=�!".)!'"��%���������/�

�/3/�� �$� ,-���" �� %�'"!�"'� ���� "*�% � 5"!"� &#"�� 0)!� =E;� )0� �  � ,)�'�,'#� !".!"#"�'%�7� �� '-%!��
,)�#",&'%+"�9&�!'"! $�%�,!"�#"�%��'-"#"�,-���" #1�&#�7"�@=3;�%���������:?;�%����B/��

�/3/<� �)*.�!"��')����'-"!"�5�#�*%�%*� �,-��7"�%��'-"��&*4"!#�)0�,)*. �%�'#�����,)&�,%  )!����
,)�'�,'#�!","%+"���,!)##�'-"��)&�,% /��

�/3/3� �-"!"�5�#���'-%!��,)�#",&'%+"�9&�!'"! $�%�,!"�#"�%��'-"��+"!�7"�!"#.)�#"�!�'"�0)!�,)*. �%�'#�
5%'-�����+"!�7"�)0��=�5)!6%�7���$#�'�6"��')�!"#.)���')�,)*. �%�'#�4$�'-"�"���)0�'-%#�9&�!'"!�
@�:/:�5)!6%�7���$#�%������������5)!6%�7���$#�%����B/��-"�,)!.)!�'"�'�!7"'�')�!"#.)���%#��:�
5)!6%�7���$#/��

�� �",-�%,� ��"!+%,"#�-���#%8�,)*. �%�'�,�#"#�%��'-%#�,�'"7)!$/��
�

�� 
##"'�����7"*"�'�@��	
�B�-���)�"�,)*. �%�'�,�#"�%��'-%#�,�'"7)!$/�
�
�",-�%,� ��"!+%,"#�!","%+"������!"#.)��"��')���<�#'�7"���,&#')*"!�,)*. �%�'#��&!%�7��<�
����'))6�����+"!�7"�)0�?�5)!6%�7���$#�')�.!)+%�"�!"#.)�#"#/��>>;�)0��  ��'�7"���,&#')*"!�
,)*. �%�'#�!","%+"��4$��",-�%,� ��"!+%,"#��&!%�7��<�5"!"�!"#.)��"��')�5%'-%��'-"�'�!7"'�)0�
�:�5)!6%�7���$#/�
�

�/3/:� �
,!)##�'-"��)&�,% ��!"#.)�#"#�')��)&�,%  )!����"�9&%!%"#�'))6�����+"!�7"�E�5)!6%�7���$#�%����
�<�,)*.�!"��')�=�5)!6%�7���$#�%����/��-"�,)!.)!�'"�'�!7"'�%#����5)!6%�7���$#/��

������������",-�%,� � �"!+%,"#� !","%+"�� ���� !"#.)��"�� ')� =E=� �)&�,%  )!���� "�9&%!%"#� �&!%�7� �<� ����
'))6�����+"!�7"�)0�=�5)!6%�7���$#�')�.!)+%�"�!"#.)�#"#/��>=;�)0��  ��)&�,%  )!����"�9&%!%"#�
!","%+"��4$��",-�%,� ��"!+%,"#��&!%�7��<�5"!"�!"#.)��"��')�5%'-%��'-"�'�!7"'�)0����5)!6%�7�
��$#/��

����	
��'))6�����+"!�7"�)0����5)!6%�7���$#�')�!"#.)��/��

�/3/=� �),� ��)+"!�*"�'��*4&�#*���@���B�,)�'�,'#�'))6�# %7-' $� )�7"!�')�!"#.)���')�%���<�5%'-�
����+"!�7"�)0��?�,� "���!���$#�'�6"��,)*.�!"��')��:�,� "���!���$#�%����������3�,� "���!�
��$#� %����/��-"�#'����!��!"#.)�#"�'�!7"'� %#��E�,� "���!���$#F��",-�%,� ��"!+%,"#� '))6����
,� "���!���$#/��

�/3/?� � �-"� 0),&#� 0)!� ,)*. �%�'#� ���� 5%�"!� ,&#')*"!� 0""�4�,6� %#� D.&''%�7� '-%�7#� !%7-'� ����  "�!�%�7���
0!)*� %'1� 5%'-� �",-�%,� � �"!+%,"#� !".)!'%�7� #)*"� .)#%'%+"� )!7��%#�'%)�� �  "�!�%�7� �&!%�7� '-%#�
9&�!'"!G�

�/3/E����8�*. "#�)0�)!7��%#�'%)�� � "�!�%�7�!".)!'"��4$��",-�%,� ��"!+%,"#�%���<G�

�� 	"+%"5�)0������,)+"!�7"�%�� "%#&!"�,"�'!"�')�*%�%*%#"�!".)!'#�)0���'%2#),%� �4"-�+%)&!�
�� �*. "*"�'�'%)��)0����%'%)�� �'!�%�%�7�0)!�#'�00��'��� "%#&!"�,"�'!"�%��!"#.)�#"�')�#�0"7&�!�%�7�

%##&"#�!�%#"��
�� ��,!"�#"��0!"9&"�,$�)0�#'!""'�, "��#%�7�%��!"#.)�#"�')�,)*. �%�'#�!","%+"��
�� �!",'%)��)0��)7�0)& %�7�#%7�#�%�� ),� �.�!6�')��"'"!�0)& %�7�%��!"#.)�#"�')�,)*. �%�'�
�� �"4#%'"�%�0)!*�'%)��!"+%"5"�������*"��"��%��!"#.)�#"�')�,&#')*"!�#&77"#'%)��

�
�

Page 71



�
�

�
�

B��� ������
���������

</�� �-"� #&,,"##0& � %*. "*"�'�'%)�� )0� �,'%)�#� ')� �"� � 5%'-� %##&"#� �!%#%�7� 0!)*� '-"� !".)!'� %�')�
�)!.)!�'"� �)+"!���,"� %##&"#� !"*�%�#� �� 6"$� .!%)!%'$/� �-"!"� !"*�%�#� �� 6"$� !%#6� %�� "�#&!%�7�
%##&"#��!%#%�7��!"��"� '�5%'-�%����'%*" $������..!).!%�'"�*���"!/��

��</�� ��-��,"*"�'#� ')� ,)!.)!�'"� !%#6� *���7"*"�'� �!!��7"*"�'#� ���� .!),"�&!"#� ,)�'%�&"� ')� 4"�
"8�*%�"�/� � � �-"� 	%#6� ����7"*"�'� #'!�'"7$� )+"!� '-"� *"�%&*� '"!*� 5%  � .!)+%�"� �� 0!�*"5)!6�
����.!),"##"#�5-%,-��!"�%���,,)!���,"�5%'-�'-"� �'"#'��!%'%#-��'����!��0)!�	%#6�����7"*"�'/�
�)� �,-%"+"� '-%#�� D�� 7�.� ��� $#%#1� -�#� 4""�� &��"!'�6"�� ')� %�"�'%0$� �,'%)�#� !"9&%!"�� 0)!�
%*.!)+"*"�'���

</<� �-"��)!.)!�'"�	%#6�	"7%#'"!�-�#�4""��"+� &�'"���������"��')�4$�'-"��8",&'%+"��"�*��&!%�7�
'-"� 9&�!'"!/� � �!)7!"##� %�� *%'%7�'%�7� �,'%)�#� -�#� 4""�� %�, &�"�� 5%'-%�� '-"� !" "+��'� #",'%)�#�
�4)+"/����

C��� �����������
����
���������

3/�� ��)'��.. %,�4 "�

;��� ���
�	������
��

:/�����)�#& '�'%)��%��!" �'%)��')�'-"��!�0'��)!.)!�'"�� ���"�7�7"��%��%+%�&� #�����)!7��%#�'%)�#�0!)*�
�,!)##��%!!� 1#��%+"!#"�,)**&�%'%"#�����'-%#�%#�!"0 ",'"��%��'-"��)!.)!�'"�� ��/�

<��� �����������
���������	
����=�����	
�����
��������!��	���

=/�� �-"� �)!.)!�'"� � ��� #"'#� )&'� ,)**%'*"�'#� ���� , "�!� �,'%)�#� %�� !" �'%)�� ')� 5)!6%�7� 5%'-�
+) &�'�!$��,)**&�%'$�����0�%'-�#",')!�)!7��%#�'%)�#�')�%*.!)+"�)&',)*"#�0)!� ),� �."). "/���

D��� �����	��������������
�����
�
����E���E�������
!E��
����������

?/�����-"��)&�,% ��&�7"'�����������,-)) #��&�7"'���������������.%'� ��!)7!�**"�������<�-�+"�
4""���7!""������#&..)!'�'-"��" %+"!$�)0�'-"��)!.)!�'"�� ��/��	"#)&!,"�%*. %,�'%)�#�!" �'%�7�')�
'-"� �" %+"!$� )0� �,'%)�#� %�� '-"� �)!.)!�'"� � ��� -�+"� 4""�� #"'� )&'� %�� %��%+%�&� � �".�!'*"�'� �
. ��#/��&!'-"!� �"'�% #� �!"� ,)�'�%�"�� %�� 
.."��%,"#� ��� <� ���� 3� 5-%,-� �!"� . �,"�� 5%'-%�� '-"�
�%4!�!$/�

?/������-"�.!)C",'"��7"�"!� �0&���4� ��,"��'�<����!,-������%#�J>/?�*%  %)���#�#-)5��4" )5��


"'�% #� J*%  %)�� J*%  %)��
�$#@/5%/*� !/&/$)(� �-&*� 8)()&5/� )%� B�� �)$53� ����� 43/&� ,/%%1&'� %3/�
8-*'/%�6#$���������

� =/>�

�)81&/%�*/51,1#&,� � �
�?���!,-����"!� "%7-�!"'�%�"�� � 2�/:�
��H&�"����"5��)*"#��)�&#���),� ��"!+%,"#��!��'� � K�/:�
�<�H&�"�2��%���,%� �)&'2'&!����������#-)5"�����"'�%�,!"�#"�%��'-"�4� ��,"�)0�
J��*%  %)���0'"!�*""'%�7����"'�!"+"�&"�)+"!#."���)0�J�/<�*%  %)��

� K�/��

�<�H&�"�2���'"7!�'"���!��#.)!'���%'����%'%)�� �0&��%�7� � 2�/<�
�<� H&�"� 2� ��	���� #,-"*"�0&��"�� �#�.�!'�)0� �������� '-"!"4$� !" "�#%�7� '-"�
!"9&%!"*"�'�')�0&���%���������/��

� K3/3�

���H& $����),%� ��"!+%,"#�	".!)+%#%)�� � ������2</:�
���H& $�����'%)�� ���#&!��,"�,-��7"#� � ������2�/��

Page 72



�
�

���H& $����&..)!'�0)!��,-)) ���$� � ������2�/��
����".'"*4"!������"."��"�'�	"+%"5� � 2�/<�
�<��,')4"!�2���.%'� %#�'%)��)0��'�'&')!$�	"�&����,$���$*"�'#� � K�/?�
�$#@/5%/*�.)$1)&5/,���"#%/&%1)(�#./$,"/&*,� � �
�)�"� �", �!"�� � '-)&7-� .!"##&!"#� %�"�'%0%"�� �'� '-"� "��� )0� �".'"*4"!� �����
5%'-%�G�
������2�
�& '��),%� ��"!+%,"#�����������������������������������������������J=/E�*%  %)��
������2�-% �!"������L)&�7��"). "��������������������������������������J�/=�*%  %)��
������2�	"7"�"!�'%)����)&#%�7������ ���%�7����������������������J�/:�*%  %)��

� 2�

!/&/$)(� �-&*� 8)()&5/� )%� B�� �)$53� ����� 8),/*� -"#&� %3/� ()%/,%�
"$#@/5%1#&,�

� �
>/?�

�
?/<� �-"� 
�& '� �),%� � �"!+%,"#� �-% �!"�� ���� L)&�7� �"). "� ���� 	"7"�"!�'%)��� �)&#%�7� ����

� ���%�7� 
".�!'*"�'#� -�+"� -%7- %7-'"�� .!"##&!"#� )�� '-"%!� �".�!'*"�'� � 4&�7"'#/� � 
�$�
#&4#"9&"�'�)+"!#."���5)& ��%*.�,'�&.)��'-"�7"�"!� �0&���4� ��,"#/��

�
?/3� �-"�,�.%'� �.!)7!�**"�%#�#&**�!%#"���#�0)  )5#G��
�

�

�"/&*
�$1'1&)(�
�""$#.)(�
F���

�/.1,/*�
�""$#.)(�
F���

�#$/5),%�
�/"���������
F���

�#$/5),%�
�/5���������
F���


�& '��),%� ��"!+%,"# ���:3 ��>3< ��>3< ��>3<
�-% �!"��(�L)&�7��"). " �:�EE> <���>� �3�333 ���>:<
	"7"�"!�'%)����)&#%�7�(�� ���%�7 :��E� �E��<? �<�3EE ���:?�
�%���," ����� =�?�E <�=?� =�?�E
��5���	�����
##"'��7' E��=< E�E?> E�??> E�E?>
�",-�%,� ��"!+%,"# ?�E?� ���:=3 ���:=3 ���:=3
�#%)(��$#'$)22/ CG=�;G ��=CC� <C=��G <;=<B�

� �

�/,#-$5/,
�$1'1&)(�
�""$#.)(�
F���

�/.1,/*�
�""$#.)(�
F���

�#$/5),%�
�/"��������
F���

�#$/5),%�
�/5��������
F���

�)!!)5%�7 �:�>�: <��:E3 ���E�> �?�<<?
��.%'� �	","%.'# <���� <���� <���� <����
	"+"�&"��!"#"!+"#��,)�'!%4&'%)�# <�� ��<>3 ��3<3 ��3<3
�!��'#�2���&,�'%)� �<�33� ���?�< ���:<= �>��E3
�!��'#�2���'"7!�'"���!��#.)!' ���:: ���:: ���:: ���::
�!��'#�2��),� ��!��#.)!'�� �� <��>: <��>: <��>: <��>:
�!��'#�2��'-"! ��<=< �:�:�� ���E:� ���:<<
�#%)(�$/,#-$5/, CG=�;G ��=CC� <C=��G <;=<B� �

?/:� �-"�)&''&!��0)!",�#'�0)!�'-"���������,�.%'� �.!)7!�**"�-�#�# %7-' $�%�,!"�#"��#%�,"�9&�!'"!��/��
�-%#�%#�*�%� $��&"�')�'-"����%'%)�� ��..!)+� �7!��'"��0)  )5%�7�'-"�!","%.'�)0�."!*%##%)��0!)*�
'-"�
����')�,�.%'� %#"�#'�'&')!$�!"�&����,$�.�$*"�'#/���-"!"�-�#�4""��#)*"�!"2.!)0% %�7�)0�
#,-"*"#�5%'-%���L������	"7"�"!�'%)����)&#%�7������ ���%�7/��

?/=� �!)7!"##� ,)�'%�&"#� ')� 4"� *��"� )�� �� �&*4"!� )0� #,-"*"#� %�, &�%�7� '-)#"� �'� �"�#4$� ����
��'-,�!'��!%*�!%"#�5-%,-� %#��"�!%�7�,)*. "'%)�/� ��%  )5'!""� '-"��-% �!"�1#��)*"�0!)*�-)*"�
4�#"���'�'-"�0)!*"!�	)#, �!"�#%'"�)."�"��%��
","*4"!���-"�����%,����!"*�')!%&*��"!,&!$�

4�'"*"�'� 4&% �%�7� 5)!6#� .!)7!�**"� ,)�'%�&"#� �#� �)"#� 5)!6� )�� '-"� �)5�� �%�6� �%��&,'� %��
�%!6"�-"��/�

�

Page 73



�
�

���� ��!�������������
���

E/�� �"7� � %*. %,�'%)�#� !" �'%�7� ')� '-"� �,'%)�#� #"'� )&'� %�� '-"� �)!.)!�'"� � ��� 5%  � 4"� ���!"##"�� 4$�
�".�!'*"�'#��#��..!).!%�'"/�

G��� �A	������������������
��

>/�� ��#�'-"�.)'"�'%� �%*.�,'�)0�$)&!�.!).)#� @#B�4""��!"+%"5"��5%'-�!"7�!��')�"9&� %'$M�
�
� @�B�L"#�����%*.�,'�!"+%"5�%#��''�,-"����@��������		�
	��������	��
����/�
�
� @4B��)�4",�&#"�'-"!"�%#��)�!" "+��,"�')�"9&� %'$/�
�
� @,B��)�4",�&#"�)0���)'-"!�!"�#)��5-%,-�%#G�
�
� �-%#�!".)!'�%#�0)!�%�0)!*�'%)�������)"#��)'�!"9&%!"���.) %,$��",%#%)��)!���,-��7"�')�#"!+%,"#/�
� �
� �'� %#� �� !"9&%!"*"�'� '-�'� �9&� %'$� �*.�,'� 
##"##*"�'#� @�/�/
/1#B� �!"� ,)��&,'"�� ')� ,)+"!� '-"�

.!)C",'#������,'%)�#�*"�'%)�"��%��'-%#�!".)!'�')�,)*. $�5%'-�'-"�!"9&%!"*"�'�)0�'-"��9&� %'%"#�

,'�����/���

��������
�
����	����
�����������
���

��/�� ��!4)�� !"�&,'%)�� %#� �� #.",%0%,� 7)� � %�� '-"� �)!.)!�'"� � ���� 5%'-� �##),%�'"�� �,'%)�#� ����
*"�#&!"#��#�#"'�)&'�%��'-"��7!""����'"!%*���!4)���&�7"'�����2��/�����'-%#�9&�!'"!�'-"� "+" �)0�
�	"��. "�7"#�-�#�%�,!"�#"��')�:=E��"8,""�%�7�'-"�'�!7"'�)0�:��/�

���������

�
!��
������	
���������������������
��

��/�� � ���%�7� ���� �)**&�%'$� ��0"'$� %#� �� #.",%0%,� 7)� � %�� '-"� �)!.)!�'"� � ���� 5%'-� �##),%�'"��
�,'%)�#�����*"�#&!"#/��
�$�. ���%�7�����,)**&�%'$�#�0"'$�%*. %,�'%)�#�-�+"�4""��%�"�'%0%"��
%���",'%)��3�)0�'-%#�!".)!'/���-"!"�%#��)�. ���%�7�."!*%##%)��!"9&%!"���#���!"#& '�)0�'-%#�!".)!'/�

������������
�����
���

��/����-�'�'-"�,)�'"�'#�)0�'-%#�!".)!'�4"��)'"�/�
�

�B��������
��������������
�����
���

�</����)&�,% � �..!)+"�� '-"� �)!.)!�'"� � ��� )�� �E'-� 
.!% � ����/� �-%#� !".)!'� .!)+%�"#� �� 9&�!'"! $�
.!)7!"##� )�� �" %+"!%�7� '-"� �)&�,% 1#� �)!.)!�'"� � ���� %�, &�%�7� ."!0)!*��,"� )0� !" "+��'�
.!)C",'#�����%��%,�')!#������##),%�'"��0%���,%� �����!%#6�*)�%')!%�7�%�0)!*�'%)�/�

�
�
�
��������	������ �)$#(��3)$$)%%����)$')$/%��)&*)((,����(1./��,3%#&��
� � �"!0)!*��,"�����7"*"�'��00%,"!#�
� � �" ".-)�"G��@��:��===�<E=:����:��=�=���E>����:��=>��E<<3B�
�
� � �*�% G���,�!) #-�!!�''N5%!!� /7)+/&6���*�!7�!"'#����  #N5%!!� /7)+/&6�
� � � ��������, %+"�#-')�N5%!!� /7)+/&6��
�
�

������
������������

�!"+%)&#��)&�,% �������4%�"'�!".)!'#��#��"'�% "��%��'-"�#&4C",'�-%#')!$�4" )5�
�

Page 74



�
�

�	
�������������>(),%�B�0/)$,?�

�#-&51(��//%1&'�� �)%/�

��
�
���H���������A���/$6#$2)&5/�)&*��1&)&51)(��/.1/4�
��
�
���H���������A���/$6#$2)&5/�)&*��1&)&51)(��/.1/4�
��
�
���7��/(1./$1&'�%3/��#$"#$)%/��()&�
��	
����7��*#"%1#&�#6��#$"#$)%/��()&�����7�C�
��
�
���7��$)6%��#$"#$)%/��()&�6#$�����7�C�

�B�
#./28/$������
����-(0������
�D��"$1(������
�C��"$1(������
�D��)$53������

�

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

28 MARCH 2012 

SUBJECT: DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED 
POWERS 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF TECHNICAL SERVICES 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER:  

COUNCILLOR LESLEY RENNIE 

CULTURE, TOURISM & LEISURE 

KEY DECISION?   NO 
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Members, in accordance with the Approved 
Scheme of Delegation, of any instances where delegated authority has been used by 
the Director of Technical Services with respect to the appointment of contractors.  In 
this case, the tender for the supply of the pantomime at the Floral Pavilion between 
December 2010 and January 2013 and the supply and maintenance of fitness 
equipment for Wirral’s Leisure Centres from February 2012 for 5 years. 

 
1.2 Both procurement exercises were undertaken in collaboration with Corporate 

Procurement and the successful contractors were appointed on the highest aggregate 
score based upon price and quality.  The reporting of the decision for the pantomime 
at the Floral Pavilion follows advice given by Internal Audit in October 2011. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 Under the Approved Scheme of Delegation, the Director of Technical Services has 
used delegated authority to approve the appointment of UK Productions for a 3 year 
contract commencing in 2010 to provide a pantomime show at the Floral Pavilion 
Theatre, and for the appointment of Pulse Fitness Equipment Limited for the supply 
and maintenance of fitness equipment for Wirral’s Leisure Centres for a five year 
contract commencing February 2012. 

 
Floral Pavilion Contract 

 
2.2 Over 20 companies applied for the contract during the PQQ stage and from those 5 

companies were invited to tender.  UK Productions scored highest in terms of both 
price and quality. 

 
2.3 The 2011 pantomime was extremely successful with a significant increase in group 

bookings particularly from schools in the area.  This can be attributed to the success 
of Cinderella in 2010 and also to scheduling a week of performances earlier in 
December.  The marketing of the 2011 pantomime began during the run of Cinderella 
with many people booking 12 months in advance.  This has been repeated in 2012 
and there are already advance sales of £60k for Peter Pan this year.  Aladdin sold 
29,290 tickets compared with Cinderella which sold 23,074 which represented a 30% 
increase in sales. 

Agenda Item 9

Page 77



Supply and Maintenance of Fitness Equipment 
 
2.4 Knowsley Council undertook a Framework Agreement on behalf of the Merseyside 

Procurement Partnership, which includes Wirral Council. The technical specification 
included in the Framework contained the equipment specification provided by Wirral 
Council. 

 
2.5 Tenders were invited via the Knowsley framework, which is fully compliant with the  

Council’s Contracts Procedure Rules and European Procurement Directives.  The 
tender evaluation was based upon lowest price, as an accepted quality standard had 
already been established at the framework process stage by Knowsley Council. 

 
2.6 Replacement equipment is required urgently at two Leisure Centres – Europa Pools 

Leisure Centre and West Kirby Concourse Leisure Centre, and the requirements for 
these two Centres were used in the tender pricing schedule.  

 
The outcome of the evaluation was that the tender submitted by Pulse Fitness Limited 
proved to be the lowest bid and has been awarded by the Director of Technical 
Services under Delegated Authority for the supply, installation, including support and 
maintenance of fitness equipment, for a period of five years. 

 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

3.1 The pantomime is a key event in the Floral’s programme and brings in significant 
income.  A poor quality production or unfavourable financial agreement would affect 
income levels for several years. 

 
3.2 The fitness suites in Wirral’s Leisure Centres are well used and key sources of 

income.  Customers have high levels of expectation and if the facilities are not 
regularly renewed and maintained there would be a significant loss of income and a 
rise in customer complaints. 

 
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

4.1 Different types of production or contractual arrangements have been considered for 
the pantomime but at the present time the agreement with UK Productions is 
considered the most financially advantageous. 

 
4.2 In respect of the supply and maintenance of fitness equipment the option of leasing 

was considered but does not provide best value for money. 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION 

5.1 For the pantomime production there is no specific consultation but audience feedback 
on productions is important to deciding future production. 

 
5.2 In Leisure centres regular feedback is reviewed from customers using fitness suites on 

the type and condition of equipment. 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are no specific implications arising directly from this report. 
 

Page 78



7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS 

7.1 The pantomime provided a net income of £261,740 for 2011/12. 
 
7.2 It is estimated that the total value of the contract over five years for the supply and 

maintenance of fitness equipment will be approximately £442,000 given the current 
requirements of the service. 

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 There are no specific implications arising from this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 

10.1 There are no specific carbon reduction implications arising from this report. 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are no specific implications arising from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION 

12.1 That the report be noted. 
 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 To advise Members in accordance with the Approved Scheme of Delegation. 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Jim Lester 
  Head of Cultural Services, Technical Services Department 
  telephone:  (0151) 606 2308 
  email:   jimlester@wirral.gov.uk 
 
APPENDICES 

None. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

(Include background information referred to or relied upon when drafting this report, 
together with details of where the information can be found.  There is no need to refer to 
publicly available material: e.g. Acts of Parliament or Government guidance.) 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

  

 

Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
28 MARCH 2012 

SUBJECT: DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED 
POWERS 

WARD/S AFFECTED: VARIOUS 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF LAW, HR AND ASSET 
MANAGEMENT 

KEY DECISION? NO 
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Members, in accordance with the Approved 
Scheme of Delegation, of any instances where delegated authority has been used by 
the Director of Law, HR and Asset Management with respect to the appointment of 
Contractors pursuant to Contract Procedure Rule 14.1. 

 
1.2 The below listed tenders were the lowest/most economically advantageous received. 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 The following tenders have been accepted since the last meeting of this Committee on 
30 January 2012. 

 
 Project Title: Hoylake Community Centre & Sanderling Unit 
  Window frame replacement 
 Contract Sum: £70,456.88 
 Contractor: W Carroll & Sons Ltd 
 Funded from: Community Asset Transfer Fund 
 
 Project Title: Fire Alarms and Emergency Lighting 
  Maintenance (2 years) 
 Contract Sum: £37,042.52 per annum 
 Contractor: Dante Fire & Security Ltd 
 Funded from: Law, HR & AM Repairs & Maintenance Revenue 
 
 Project Title: Leasowe Recreation Centre 
  Pool Filtration and Ultraviolet Sterilisation Installation 
 Contract Sum: £51,898.00 
 Contractor: Sterling Hydrotech Ltd 
 Funded from: Capital Programme - Cultural Services Assets 
 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 There are no risks in relation to this report. 
 
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 There are no other options to be considered in relation to this report. 
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 81



5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 There are no consultation issues in relation to this report. 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are no implications directly arising from this report. 
 
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 Funding for these projects is as detailed above.  There are no other resource 
implications as a result of this report. 

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are no legal implications as a direct result of this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

12.1 There are no carbon reduction implications as a direct result of this report. 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

12.1 There are no implications as a result of this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 That the report be noted. 
 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 To advise members in accordance with the Approved Scheme of Delegation. 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Robin Stratton 
  Assistant Projects Manager 
  telephone:  (0151) 606 2340 
  email:   robinstratton@wirral.gov.uk 
APPENDICES 

None. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

None. 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 
Council Meeting  Date 

  

 

Page 82


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Corporate Goal Update - Parks and Open Spaces
	5 Corporate Goal Update - Leisure and Culture Facilities
	6 Libraries Strategy
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	7 Progress on the Control of Illicit Sales to Young people
	8 2011/2012 Third Quarter Performance Monitoring Report
	9 Decisions Taken Under Delegated Powers - Director of Technical Services
	10 Decisions Taken Under Delegated Powers - Director of Law HR and Asset Management

